
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Date: 20/11/09 Telephone Enquiries  01752 307990 Fax 01752 304819 

Please ask for Judith Shore, Democratic and 
Member Support Officer 

e-mail judith.shore@plymouth.gov.uk 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL 
 
DATE: 
TIME: 
PLACE: 

MONDAY 30 NOVEMBER 2009 
2.00 PM 
COUNCIL HOUSE, PLYMOUTH (NEXT TO THE CIVIC 
CENTRE) 

 
Members – 
The Lord Mayor, Councillor K Foster, Chair 
Deputy Lord Mayor Councillor  Drean, Vice Chair 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Berrow, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, 
Mrs Bragg, Brookshaw, Browne, Coker, Dann, Delbridge, Mrs Dolan, Evans, 
M Foster, Mrs Foster, Fox, Fry, Gordon, James, Jordan, Kerswell, King, 
Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Lock, Lowry, Dr. Mahony, 
McDonald, Miller MBE, Monahan, Mrs Nelder, Mrs Nicholson, Nicholson, 
Mrs Pengelly, Purnell, Rennie, Reynolds, Ricketts, Roberts, Dr. Salter, Smith, 
Stark, Mrs Stephens, Stevens, Thompson, Tuohy, Vincent, Viney, Mrs Watkins, 
Wheeler, Wigens and Wildy 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business overleaf 
 
Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the 
meeting. 
 

 
 
 

BARRY KEEL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

BARRY KEEL  
Chief Executive 
Floor 1 - Civic Centre 
Plymouth 
PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Public Document Pack



 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non attendance submitted by Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 10) 
  
 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held on 12 

October 2009, 26 October 2009, 23 November at 12 noon (to follow) and 23 
November at 2.30pm (to follow). 

  
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS    
  
 (a) To receive announcements from the Lord Mayor or the Chief Executive; 

 
(b) To receive announcements from the Leader, Cabinet Members or 

Committee Chairs. 
  
5. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from and provide answers to the public in relation to matters 

which, in the opinion of the Lord Mayor, are relevant to the business of the 
meeting in accordance with paragraph 10 of the Constitution. 

  
6. TO DEAL WITH ANY BUSINESS FROM THE LAST COUNCIL MEETING, 

IF ANY:   
 

 
TO DETERMINE RECOMMENDATIONS ON ITEMS ON CABINET, O VERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD OR OTHER COMMITTEES 
  
7. PLYMOUTH CITYBUS LIMITED SHAREHOLDING:   (Pages 11 - 50) 
 
 (a.) OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 

RECOMMENDATIONS (FROM THE MEETING HELD 
ON 25 NOVEMBER 2009) (TO FOLLOW) 

 

   



 

 (b.) CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS (FROM THE 
MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2009) AND 
SUBSEQUENT REPORT 

 

   
8. PLYMOUTH'S CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 

2008 - 2011 (REFRESH 2009):   
(Pages 51 - 52) 

 
9. GAMBLING ACT 2005 - 3 YEAR REVIEW OF THE 

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES:   
(Pages 53 - 54) 

 
10. BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) VETO:   (Pa ges 55 - 56) 
 
11. AMENDMENT TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS' 

TERMS OF REFERENCE:   
(Pages 57 - 58) 

 
12. MOTIONS ON NOTICE    
  
 To consider motions from Members in accordance with paragraph 13 of the 

Constitution. 
  
13. TO CONSIDER ANY OTHER BUSINESS SPECIFIED IN THE SUMMONS 

TO THE MEETING, OR MATTERS TAKEN AS A MATTER OF URG ENCY 
BY THE PERSON PRESIDING INCLUDING CONSIDERATION OF 
PROPOSALS FROM THE CABINET IN RELATION TO THE COUNC IL'S 
BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK AND REPORTS OF THE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEES FOR DEBATE:   

 

 
QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 

  
14. GENERAL QUESTIONS    
  
 Questions to the Leader, Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs covering 

aspects for their areas of responsibility or concern by Members in accordance with 
paragraph 12 of the Constitution; 

  
15. FORWARD PLAN   (Pages 59 - 84) 
  
 The Leader will introduce the Forward Plan as now submitted. 

 
Members may ask questions specific to the Forward Plan of the Leader/Cabinet 
Members. 

  
16. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) 
of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.   

  



 

PART II – PRIVATE MEETING 
 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
That, under the law, the City Council is entitled to consider certain items in private.  
Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are 
discussed. 
 
NIL 
  
 



City Council Monday 12 October 2009 

City Council 

Monday 12 October 2009 

PRESENT: 

Councillor K Foster, in the Chair. 
Councillor Drean, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Berrow, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Mrs Bragg, Brookshaw, 
Coker, Dann, Delbridge, Mrs Dolan, Evans, M Foster, Mrs Foster, Fry, Gordon, James, Jordan, Kerswell, 
King, Michael Leaves, Lowry, Dr. Mahony, McDonald, Miller MBE, Monahan, Mrs Nelder, Mrs Nicholson, 
Nicholson, Mrs Pengelly, Purnell, Rennie, Reynolds, Ricketts, Roberts, Dr. Salter, Smith, Stark, 
Mrs Stephens, Stevens, Thompson, Tuohy, Vincent, Viney, Mrs Watkins, Wheeler, Wigens and Wildy. 

Apologies for absence: Councillors Browne, Fox, Martin Leaves, Sam Leaves and Lock. 

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 4.05 pm. 

Note: At a future meeting, the Council will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject to change.  Please 
check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended.

37. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest made by Members in accordance with the Code of Conduct. 

38. MINUTES   

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 August 2009 were signed as a correct record. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS   

39. The Lord Mayor   

(i) Alderman Eileen Evans 

The Lord Mayor referred to the death, on 25 June 2009, of Alderman Eileen Evans who was the Lord 
Mayor of Plymouth in 1998-99 and became an Honorary Alderman of Devon County Council in 1998 
and Honorary Alderman of Plymouth City Council in 2000. 

Councillors stood in silence as a mark of respect. 

(ii) Councillor Tuohy 

The Lord Mayor welcomed newly elected Councillor Tuohy to this, her first, City Council meeting. 

(iii) Britain in Bloom and Allotment Awards 

The Lord Mayor presented awards for the following: 

• National:  Britain in Bloom silver gilt award and award for Darwin themed local routes; 
• Regional:  South West in Bloom gold award and award for Darwin themed local routes; 
• Neighbourhood:  East End Community Group for allotments on Embankment Road. 

(iv) Customer Service Excellence Award 

The Lord Mayor announced that the Council’s front line customer service team won a national award 
last week.  The award highlighted Plymouth City Council as a leader in customer excellence to other 
authorities and public bodies who were present and it was hoped that this would soon be shared on 
the Cabinet Office website as best practice for others to use. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



City Council Monday 12 October 2009 

40. Chief Executive   

Appointments to committees, outside bodies, etc. 

Resolved that the following appointments were approved – 

Committee Change of membership
(1) Audit Committee Councillor Tuohy to replace Councillor Wildy
(2) Planning Committee Councillor Tuohy to replace Councillor Wildy

41. Leader   

(i) Business Improvement District (BID) 

The city had received an award at a British BIDS Standards Board Award ceremony held last month in 
recognition of the successful way Plymouth’s BID had been run since it was implemented four years 
ago. 

(ii) Funding Offer from Sport England 

Plymouth City Council had received a funding offer of nearly £2m from Sport England for the Life 
Centre project.  The Leader extended thanks to all involved in securing the bid. 
   

42. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC   

In accordance with paragraph 10 of the constitution, the following question was submitted by a 
member of the public – 

Question No. Question By Cabinet Member Subject
11 09/10 Mr F Sharpe Councillor Bowyer Downham School

Please could it be disclosed when the announcement is expected to be made that the Downham 
School site Plymstock is surplus to Plymouth City Council’s future requirements? 

Response:

Downham School is due to be relocated to the Estover One School Pathfinder Campus in 
September 2012 if all goes well with the build at the campus.  This will mean that the earliest that 
the Downham site would be declared surplus to requirements would be September 2012 but this 
does depend on the build coming in on schedule. 

Resolved that in the absence of the questioner, a written response be sent to him. 

43. LOCAL DEMOCRACY WEEK : PRESENTATION BY THE YOUTH PA RLIAMENT   

The Leader welcomed members of the Youth Parliament to the Council meeting and invited them to 
give a presentation to Members on their role and aspirations for the future. 

City Council and Youth Parliament members’ questions, suggestions and responses included – 

• the Youth Parliament would welcome the opportunity to be consulted on ‘Locality working’ and 
would be happy to give feedback to the Council; 

• the Youth Parliament cabinet appointees were not elected but were drawn from those who 
had demonstrated their interest in the Youth Parliament; 

Page 2



City Council Monday 12 October 2009 

• regarding how City Council members could help, the Youth Parliament would welcome more 
aims and tasks to fulfil, more promotional  opportunities and visits by City Council members to 
their meetings; 

• City Council members reiterated their invitation to Youth Parliament members to attend 
Cabinet meetings; 

• City Council members suggested that it would be a good idea if their contact details could be 
disseminated to Youth Parliament members.  

Resolved that thanks be extended to the Youth Parliament members for their attendance and 
presentation. 

44. TO DEAL WITH ANY BUSINESS FROM THE LAST COUNCIL MEE TING   

There were no items of business outstanding for this meeting. 

Councillor McDonald raised a query regarding the accuracy of a written response she had received in 
respect of ‘houses in multiple occupation’.  She was advised that this did not fall within the scope of 
the agenda item and should be taken up outside of the meeting. 

ITEMS REFERRED FROM CABINET AND OVERVIEW AND SCRUTI NY MANAGEMENT BOARD   

45. Protocol for establishment of Joint Health Overview  and Scrutiny Committee   

Councillor James submitted resolution (3) of Overview and Scrutiny Management Board minute 10 (a) 
for approval.  The proposal was seconded by Councillor Mrs Watkins. 

Resolved that Overview and Scrutiny Management Board minute 10, resolution (3) was approved as 
follows – 

approval and adoption of the ‘Protocol for establishment of joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee’ be confirmed.  

46. Housing Stock Transfer   

Councillor Brookshaw submitted the recommendations contained in the report for approval and the 
proposals were seconded by Councillor Fry. 

Resolved that the recommendations be approved as follows – 

(1) it be agreed to proceed with the transfer of the Council’s housing stock to Plymouth 
Community Homes subject to the Council’s final approval of the Valuation Agreement, the 
terms of the disposal contract and to the Council obtaining all necessary consent; 

(2) the decision to transfer the housing stock be deferred and an Extraordinary General Meeting 
of the Council be called and held on 26 October at 5pm to determine the transfer proposals. 

47. MOTIONS ON NOTICE   

There were no motions on notice. 

48.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS SPECIFIED IN THE SUMMONS TO THE MEETING OR MATTERS 
TAKEN AS A MATTER OF URGENCY 

There were no items of business. 

Councillor Evans raised concerns regarding a letter that had come to his attention warning that some 
gas boilers’ heating equipment supplied to public bodies contained gaskets that might fail.  The Chief 
Executive advised that such issues should be raised direct with him and agreed to enquire further into 
the matter. 

Page 3



City Council Monday 12 October 2009 

QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS   

49. General Questions   

In accordance with paragraph 12 of the Constitution, the following questions were asked of the 
Leader, Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs covering aspects of their areas of responsibility – 

From To Subject
1 Councillor Smith Councillor Fry Tennis courts at West Hoe Park
2 Councillor Smith Councillor Fry Covenant at West Hoe Park
3 Councillor Stevens Councillor Pengelly Localities working and consultation with 

Members on boundaries
4 Councillor Wheeler Councillor Wigens Proposed St Budeaux controlled parking. 
5 Councillor Purnell Councillor Monahan Submission of update on Little Ted 

Nursery and publicity regarding new 
procedures to Plymouth Safeguarding 
Children Board, Corporate Parenting 
Group and Children & Young People’s 
OSP. 

6 Councillor Kerswell Councillor Wigens Parking permit review and deadline for 
conclusion.

7 Councillor Wheeler Councillor Mrs Pengelly Localities and recent meeting in the NW 
locality to which some of the affected 
ward members had been invited and 
some had not.

8 Councillor Stevens Councillor Bowyer CityBus valuation process and  bids 
involving Mr John Preece.

9 Councillor Evans Councillor Bowyer Herald report on CityBus and declaration 
of interest issue.  

10 Councillor Wildy Councillor Bowyer Councillor Bowyer’s changed ability to 
comment on CityBus and how the 
decision on accepted bids was known. 

11 Councillor Mrs Nelder Councillor Jordan Future of Tothill Library
12 Councillor Stevens Councillor Bowyer Method by which CityBus information 

regarding Mr John Preece’s bid reached 
Councillor Bowyer

50. Forward Plan   

Following the introduction of the Forward Plan by the Leader, questions were asked of the Leader and 
Cabinet Members as follows – 

From To Subject
1 Councillor Wildy Councillor Fry Reason for inclusion of the Devonport 

Regeneration Community Partnership 
succession plan in the Forward Plan and 
unavailability of document.

2 Councillor Lowry Councillor Bowyer The Life Centre project and consultation 
with the Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board / Customers & 
Communities Overview & Scrutiny Panel.

3 Councillor Stevens Councillor Mrs Pengelly Plymouth CityBus Shareholding Limited 
and probity of process in respect of 
declarations of interest.

4 Councillor Purnell Councillor Jordan PCC’s Aquatic Strategy and the need for 
inclusion on consultee list of the Children 
& Young People’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel and the Corporate Parenting 
Group.

Page 4



City Council Monday 12 October 2009 

From To Subject
5 Councillor Evans Councillor Mrs Pengelly Plymouth CityBus Shareholding Limited 

and, if proved to be against probity rules, 
consequences to Cabinet Member of 
reporting to the Herald.

6 Councillor Wheeler Councillor Mrs Pengelly 
/ Councillor Brookshaw

Locality Working and consulting elected 
Members on boundaries.

7 Councillor Mrs Aspinall Councillor Jordan / 
Councillor Monahan

PCC’s Aquatics Strategy / Building 
Schools for the Future Governance and 
consultation deadline for schools.

8 Councillor Wheeler Councillor Mrs Pengelly Locality Working and confirmation 
regarding consulting elected members on 
boundaries.

51. EXEMPT BUSINESS   

There were no items of exempt business. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



City Council Monday 26 October 2009 

City Council 

Monday 26 October 2009 

PRESENT: 

Councillor K Foster, in the Chair. 
Councillor Drean, Vice Chair. 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall, Ball, Mrs Beer, Berrow, Bowie, Bowyer, Mrs Bowyer, Mrs Bragg, Brookshaw, 
Browne, Coker, Dann, Delbridge, Mrs Dolan, M Foster, Mrs Foster, Fox, Fry, Gordon, James, Jordan, 
Kerswell, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Lock, Lowry, McDonald, Miller MBE, Monahan, 
Mrs Nelder, Mrs Nicholson, Mrs Pengelly, Purnell, Rennie, Reynolds, Ricketts, Roberts, Dr. Salter, Smith, 
Stark, Mrs Stephens, Stevens, Thompson, Tuohy, Vincent, Viney, Mrs Watkins, Wheeler, Wigens and 
Wildy. 

Apologies for absence: Councillors Evans, Dr. Mahony and Nicholson 

The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 6.50 pm. 

Note: At a future meeting, the Council will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject to change.  Please 
check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended.

52. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

The following declarations of interest were made in accordance with the Code of Conduct in relation to 
items under discussion at this meeting – 

Name Minute No. and Subject Reason Interest
Councillor Bowie 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Leases Council Garage Personal
Councillor Dann 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Member of Plymouth 

Community Homes Board
Prejudicial

Councillor Jordan 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Owns a former Council 
Property

Personal

Councillor Kerswell 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Council Tenant Personal
Councillor McDonald 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Member of Plymouth 

Community Homes Board
Prejudicial

Councillor Rennie 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Council Tenant Personal
Councillor Roberts 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Owns a former Council 

Property
Personal

Councillor Thompson 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Member of Plymouth 
Community Homes Board

Prejudicial

Councillor Tuohy 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Council Tenant Personal
Councillor Vincent 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Owns a former Council 

Property
Personal

Councillor Mrs Watkins 53 – Housing Stock Transfer Member of Plymouth 
Community Homes Board

Prejudicial

Councillor Mrs. Dolan 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Director of Plymouth Citybus 
Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor Drean 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Director of Plymouth Citybus 
Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor M. Foster 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Director of Plymouth Citybus 
Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor Martin 
Leaves

54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Relative employed by 
Plymouth Citybus Limited

Prejudicial

Page 7



City Council Monday 26 October 2009 

Councillor Michael 
Leaves

54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Relative employed by 
Plymouth Citybus Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor Sam Leaves 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Relative employed by 
Plymouth Citybus Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor Stark 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Director of Plymouth Citybus 
Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor Vincent 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Employee of Plymouth 
Citybus Limited

Prejudicial

Councillor Viney 54 – Motion on Notice No. 4 
09/10 (Plymouth Citybus 
Shareholding)

Director of Plymouth Citybus 
Limited

Prejudicial

53. HOUSING STOCK TRANSFER   

The Lord Mayor called on the Head of Legal Services to highlight alterations which had been made to 
the report’s recommendations since its publication.  The Head of Legal Services reported that minor 
amendments had been made to recommendations 1) and 4) and these amendments were as set out 
within the meeting’s Order of Proceedings.  

Councillor Brookshaw submitted the recommendations contained in the report, as amended, for 
approval and the proposal was seconded by Councillor Bowyer. 

Councillor Wildy, having been seconded by Councillor Smith, proposed an amendment in respect of 
recommendation 3) to include an additional recommendation 3a) – 

“the funding gap of £3m has been noted and that concrete and specific assurances are hereby 
given that no elected member of this Council will be subject to penalties regarding the above-
mentioned £3m funding gap”.

In order to consult and seek further advice on the proposed amendment, the Head of Legal Services 
requested an adjournment.

The meeting adjourned at 5.20 pm and reconvened at 5.45 pm. 

The Chief Executive stated he understood the amendment had been proposed because Members had 
concerns about personal liability.  He therefore confirmed the advice previously provided by Anne 
Adamthwaite of Anthony Collins Solicitors and the Head of Legal Services that, if Members had acted 
in good faith, and in accordance with advice from officers, there was no risk of personal liability. 

Having regard to the advice given by Council Officers and Anthony Collins Solicitors, Councillor Wildy 
withdrew her proposed amendment. 

Resolved that – 

(1) having regard to the advice of the Chief Executive in an e-mail earlier today, the transfer 
of the Council’s housing stock to Plymouth Community Homes currently scheduled to 
take place on 16 November 2009 under the terms of the transfer contract and associated 
documentation be approved, subject to the Council obtaining all necessary consent and 
final agreement on terms;

(2) officers seek Secretary of State’s consent to the disposal and transfer;

(3) the Director for Corporate Support continues to exercise his delegated authority, in 
consultation with the Corporate Impact Project Board, to continue to negotiate and 
resolve matters outstanding;

Page 8



City Council Monday 26 October 2009 

(4) the final transfer contract would be signed by the Leader and the Chair of Plymouth 
Community Homes on 13 November 2009 but completion would take place on or around 
16 November 2009 be noted;

(5) officers’ continued work to address the revenue/capital funding issue described within the 
report be noted.

(Councillors Dann, McDonald, Thompson and Mrs. Watkins, having declared prejudicial interests in 
respect of the above item, withdrew from the meeting).

(Councillors Bowie, Jordan, Kerswell, Rennie, Roberts, Tuohy and Vincent declared personal interests 
in respect of the above item). 

54. MOTION ON NOTICE (PLYMOUTH CITYBUS SHAREHOLDING)   

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure, the following Motion (No. 4 09/10) was moved by 
Councillor Stevens and seconded by Councillor Lowry – 

Plymouth City Council notes the willingness of Councillor Ian Bowyer to disclose Cabinet plans for 
money realised from the sale of the Plymouth Citybus shareholding in The Herald of 30 September 
2009 and the comments of Mr John Preece in the Herald of 1 October 2009.

Recalling the Leader of Plymouth City Council's commitment to a full and open debate on the 
future of Plymouth Citybus, officers are instructed to issue immediately a full report giving the up to 
date status of the valuation and bidding process, including decisions on all bids received, the 
reasoning behind the decisions, as well as full details of the Cabinet's plans for any profit realised 
as outlined by Councillor Bowyer in the media. 

We believe it to be grossly discourteous for developments to be highlighted via the media alone, 
and call on Councillor Bowyer to apologise to all concerned. 

Following a vote, the motion was declared lost. 

(Councillors Mrs. Dolan, Drean, M. Foster, Martin Leaves, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Stark, 
Vincent and Viney, having declared prejudicial interests in respect of the above item, withdrew from 

the meeting). 

(Councillor James, having been proposed by Councillor Stevens and seconded by Councillor Lowry, 
was appointed Vice-Chair for the above item). 

55. EXEMPT BUSINESS   

There were no items of exempt business. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 

30 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

 
 
Cabinet Minute 92  
of the meeting held on 20 
November 2009 

PLYMOUTH CITYBUS LIMITED 
SHAREHOLDING  

 
The report of the Director for Corporate Support was submitted. 
 
Resolved that the Cabinet having considered the contents of the report and 
the update report recommends the following to Council. 
 

(1) That Council –  
 

 (a) approves the sale of 100% of the shares in Plymouth 
CityBus Limited held by Plymouth City Council and Barry 
Keel on Trust for the Council to Go-Ahead Holdings Ltd on 
the terms set out in the Conditional Sale and Purchase 
Agreement (the SPA) entered into between (1) the Council 
and (2) the Preferred Bidder (the recommended terms of 
sale) subject to the satisfaction of the condition in the SPA; 
 

 (b) authorises the Director for Corporate Support (or any other 
officer authorised by him) to make any drafting or other 
amendments required to the recommended terms of sale to 
address any issues arising prior to completion, provided that 
such amendments do not affect the core terms of sale and 
provided that such amendments are made following 
consultation with the Project Board; 
 

 (c) authorises the Director for Corporate Support (or any other 
officer authorised by him) to take all necessary steps for and 
on behalf of the Council that may be required in the SPA or 
in any of the documents referred to in the SPA or relate to 
the wider transaction contemplated by the SPA which shall 
include the documents listed in the Annex to this part I and 
part II report (transaction documents); 
 

 (d) authorises the Head of Legal Services (or any other officer 
authorised by him ) to agree and execute all documents 
required to effect the sale; 
 

 (e) authorises the Director for Corporate Support (or any other 
officer authorised by him) to act as Authorised officer for the 
purposes of Article 7 of the Articles of Association of 
Plymouth CityBus Limited; 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 11



 (f) instructs all Council-nominated Non Executive Directors of 
Plymouth CityBus Limited to resign at the next meeting of 
the Board of Plymouth CityBus Limited or at such time as 
required by the Director for Corporate Support and instructs 
Barry Keel to transfer the share held by him in Trust for the 
Council as directed by the Director of Corporate Support. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Note: 
 

The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 307990 

Page 12



CITY OF PLYMOUTH   
 

Subject:    Plymouth CityBus Limited Shareholding 

Committee:    Council  

Date:     30 November 2009 

Cabinet Member:  Cllr Pengelly 

CMT Member:   Director for Corporate Support 

Author:  John Cremins 

Contact:     Tel:  01752 304029 
    e-mail: john.cremins@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:      

Part: I 
  
Introduction 
 
In June 2009 the Council established a project to “seek, and negotiate 
proposed terms with, potential purchasers of shares in Plymouth CityBus 
subject to the full Council approving of any final recommendation for sale”. 
The purpose of this paper is to outline the action taken and events since 2 
June 2009 and to recommend to the Council the sale of its shares in Plymouth 
CityBus Ltd. 
 
The Project Board appointed Go-Ahead Holding Ltd as the preferred bidder 
on 29th October 2009. Details of the company are included in Appendix 5. This 
report identifies the major commercial aspects of the deal and the Council’s 
success in achieving a consideration greater then the estimated enterprise 
value in March 2008 of £15m - £17.5m.   
 
 
The Council will have completed a competitive bidding process by the date of 
the Council meeting. 
 
1 Financial Terms 
 
The preferred bidder has offered a consideration of £20.2m for 100% of the 
shareholding subject to adjustments as described in the Financial 
Implications.   
 
The adjustments, including for debt and other payments to the Council, result 
in the Council receiving £19.58m. The funds would be paid on the completion 
of the sale, which it is expected would be in the week commencing 30th 
November 2009. 
 

Page 13



The consideration is higher than that reported for recent disposals in Chester 
(c£2m ), Preston (c£6.4m), Eastbourne (c£3.7m) and Bournemouth 
(c£13.8m).  
 
2 Transport strategy delivery 
 
At the start of the project, the Council identified a number of key issues of 
importance to it which were delivered through the ownership of Plymouth 
CityBus. These were:  
 

• The continued delivery of an extensive route network. The Council 
sought assurances that the bidders would maintain routes. 

• There are a significant number of commercial bus routes operated by 
Plymouth CityBus that assist school children to get to their schools 
(“scholars’ routes”). The Council sought to ensure that these routes 
continued to be run 

• That the name of Plymouth CityBus was known in the City and 
represented a clear branding. The Council sought assurances that the 
bidder would continue using the name of the company. 

 
The preferred bidder has responded to these three issues in a positive 
manner and has offered to maintain the route network that has historically 
been run by Plymouth CityBus for a minimum period of six months with no 
changes. They have also agreed that the Council will be provided with 90 
days notice of any proposed changes to these routes.  
 
Up to March 2008 all local authorities published statistics on the level of bus 
patronage within their local area. In the markets in which the Go-Ahead Group 
operated, bus patronage grew by 5.3%. during the four years to 31 March 
2008; by comparison in Plymouth patronage grew by 3.6%. This statistic 
suggests that Go-Ahead do seek to encourage growth and patronage.  
 
The preferred bidder has agreed to maintain the scholars’ routes for a 
minimum period of three years as currently operated by Plymouth CityBus.  
 
The preferred bidder wishes to continue the name of the company and has 
provided outline details of a possible livery that it will use to refresh the fleet. . 
The bidder has a long track record of operating stand alone companies that  
retain their local identity. Examples include Oxford Bus Company, Brighton & 
Hove Buses and Metrobus.  
 
3 Customer focused services  
 
The transport requirements of the Council in this transaction were identified to 
the bidders. The preferred bidder has responded as follows: 
 
• Go-Ahead will reduce the average age of the bus fleet to 8 years by 
March 2011; the fleet age is currently approximately nine years. The fleet 
replacement programme will see the elimination of step entrance vehicles on 
front line services operated by Plymouth CityBus by 31March 2011 and 

Page 14



subsequently not exceed the average fleet age (outside London).This is a 
major capital investment programme of c£6.7m and low floor access is 
particularly important to those with a disability and passengers with 
pushchairs.  
 
• The preferred bidder is a leading advocate of the development of 
smartcards in the Public Transport industry. The preferred bidder introduced 
their own commercial smartcard product “The Key” in their Oxford division. So 
far this has been very well received with over 20,000 registered users and 
they have funding secured to extend the concept within the division. 

 
PCB already operates a smart card product but the preferred bidder will 
upgrade the smartcard to ensure full ITSO (Integrated Transport Smartcard 
Organisation) compliance and compliance with its corporate systems.  

 
• The preferred bidder is very supportive of Green travel plans and 
incentive schemes to encourage workers to switch to public transport. The 
preferred bidder would also like to use their experience in these types of 
schemes to encourage other employers to embrace the green travel pass 
scheme. 

 
• PlusBus is a partnership scheme bringing together all major bus and 
rail companies in the UK to encourage integrated through ticketing between 
modes. Go-Ahead are strong supporters of PlusBus and would actively 
promote it in Plymouth. In the first instance Go-Ahead would place more 
introductory information at Plymouth rail station. 
 
• The Council has been a local government leader in introducing Real 
Time Passenger Information (RTPI) and developing a “check that bus” page 
on its website as well as a text service which gives live times of buses. The 
preferred bidder has demonstrated significant experience of delivering RTPI 
and leads on the installation of the current system used in Brighton and Hove. 
The preferred bidder will look to meet existing commitments whilst seeking to 
improve the service for customers.  
 
• South West Public Transport Information Ltd is a company set up in 
partnership between all bus operators and Local Authorities in the South West 
to proactively manage travel information through the regional ‘Traveline’ 
system. Partners pay a fee to partake in the services and are represented on 
the Board. Go-Ahead see the benefit in this partnership and are committed to 
continuing membership. 

 
• Off bus tickets are season or day tickets that are purchased in shops or 
at a Plymouth CityBus office. The preferred bidder is committed to the use of 
off bus ticketing sales as they develop customer loyalty and speed up 
boarding times at bus stops. The preferred bidder believes this could be really 
important for Plymouth with the likelihood of two principal operators. In such 
an environment multi operator travel cards, through tickets between operators 
and interchangeable singles tickets become very important for the customer 
and the preferred bidder believes that these are achievable even in a 

Page 15



competitive environment. If there is a demand from customers for a point of 
sale in City Centre they have undertaken to operate such a facility. 
 
• Plymouth CityBus operates a number of contracted services on behalf 
of various companies, councils and educational establishments. The preferred 
bidder has committed to operating these. 
 
4 Background and Context 
 
The Council has, over the last four years, undertaken a systematic review of 
its assets via the Council’s Asset Management Plan and Capital Strategy. In 
the first instance this has been focused on land and property. The Council 
now has in place a planned programme of investment in assets via its five 
year capital programme which is in part funded from a planned series of asset 
disposals. 
 
The Council also has a number of assets which are effectively investments but 
which are not simply land, property or financial investments. Included in this 
category is the Council’s shareholding in Plymouth City Bus Ltd (“Plymouth 
CityBus”). The Council has been assessing options for its ownership of the 
company.   

It should be noted that the Council owns all but one share in Plymouth 
CityBus. The one share is held by Barry Keel on Trust for the Council. This is 
legally documented under a Declaration of Trust given by Barry Keel in favour 
of the Council. This one share represents 0.00008% of the total issued share 
capital of the company (one share out of 1,290,000). Therefore references in 
this report and in the update report to the sale by the Council of “its” shares or 
“the Council’s 100% shares” should be taken to refer to the shares owned 
both by it directly and indirectly via the share held on Trust by Barry Keel.  
 
Plymouth CityBus has a high level of fixed costs associated with running a 
transport network and hence a small reduction in patronage has a detrimental 
impact on profitability. The company has experienced a 5 per cent decline in 
turnover in the six months to 30th September 2009.  It is noticeable that the 
majority of councils which owned bus companies have sold them, currently 
only thirteen remain in public ownership. 
 
Historically the Council has received an annual dividend from Plymouth 
CityBus. The level of dividend possible is dependent on the financial 
performance of the company. To date the dividend to the Council has 
averaged £270,000 per annum over the life of the company. This dividend 
cannot be guaranteed going forward because the company's financial 
performance is subject to market competition, turbulent fuel prices, uncertain 
patronage levels, changes to the regulatory environment and the performance 
of the overall economy.   

 
The national economic future is very uncertain and the major political parties 
are expecting to introduce significant cuts in public expenditure after the next 
election. No political party has stated they will protect funding to local 

Page 16



government; hence the Council needs to be prepared for an uncertain 
economic future. Central government has announced that they are seeking to 
realise £16bn of asset sales in the near future to reduce debt. Of these £11bn 
are local government assets and it has been suggested by ministers that 
councils will sell industrial estates, airports and other assets. Councils will be 
expected to realise the maximum value from the assets they hold. 
 
5  Process to date 
 
In June 2009 the Council established a project to “seek, and negotiate 
proposed terms with, potential purchasers of shares in Plymouth CityBus 
subject to the full Council approving any final recommendation for sale”. 
The process followed is set out in detail in Appendix 1.   
 
The key dates and events in the project have been: 
 
2009 
 

Event 

2nd June  Cabinet Meeting - Approved the 
commencement of the project  
 

3rd July  Advertised for expressions of interest (EOI) 
 

22nd July Deadline for expression of interest – 11 
received 
 

10th August Bid document issued to shortlisted 
companies 
 

11th September 
 

Five bids received 

23rd September Three companies invited to submit second 
stage bids 
 

22nd October  Second stage bids received 
 

29th October Preferred bidder selected 
 

 
Throughout, the Project Board has been advised by the Project Team which 
comprised the project manager and officers from the estates, transport, legal 
and finance functions of the Council. External advice has been provided by 
KPMG LLP (financial), Bevan Brittan LLP (legal) and Burro Happold 
Consulting Ltd (Transport strategy). Deloitte LLP provided financial due 
diligence services to the Council.       

Page 17



 
6  Democratic Oversight 
 
The key dates and events in the democratic oversight of the project are set 
out below in chronological order. Further detail on the democratic processes is 
contained at Appendix 2. 
 
Date 
 

Meeting/Event 

2nd June Cabinet Meeting 
 

10th June Resources & Performance Scrutiny 
 

11th June Overview & Scrutiny Commission 
 

24th June Overview & Scrutiny Commission 
 

2nd September Overview & Scrutiny Management Board 
 

1st October The Joint Growth & Prosperity and Support 
Services Task & Finish Group 
 

26th October  Council meeting 
 

27th October The Joint Growth & Prosperity and Support 
Services Task & Finish Group 
 

20th November Cabinet meeting 
 

30th November Council meeting 
 

 
 
In conclusion this project will have taken six months from June to November 
2009 and in that time has been the subject of two cabinet reports, six scrutiny 
debates and two full Council meetings. 
 
On the 1st October there was an adjournment debate in the House of 
Commons (Westminster Hall) on Plymouth CityBus and sustainable transport. 
All three Plymouth MPs took part in that debate and the Parliamentary Under-
Secretary of State for Transport (Chris Mole) said that “Decisions on local bus 
services are best made by those locally elected to take them”. 
 

Page 18



 
7 Office of Fair Trading (OFT) and Competition 

Commission (CC) 

The Office of Fair Trading is referring the operation of the national bus market 
(excluding London and Northern Ireland) to the Competition Commission 
which will then conduct a detailed public investigation and reach its own 
conclusions about the market. The Competition Commission has the power to 
impose remedies. At the current time there is no timetable for the conclusion 
of the competition enquiry; however the enquiry is not expected to commence 
before December 2009.  The investigation by the Competition Commission is 
not specific to any particular company or transaction. It is expected that the 
enquiry will take 18 months to conclude i.e. summer 2011. In short it is not 
expected to impact on the situation here in Plymouth.  

 
Further detail on the Office of Fair Trading and the Competition Commission is 
contained at Appendix 3. 
 
 
8 Competition in Plymouth  
 
Currently operating in the bus market in Plymouth there are two main 
providers with some other limited competition.  The principal providers are 
Plymouth CityBus and First Group, who between them have approximately 
98% of the market. Target Travel, Stagecoach and Western Greyhound are 
operating a small number of services in the city. Target Travel has increased 
the number of subsidised service routes that it is contracted on but it is not 
anticipated that this will have a significant impact on the aggregate 98 per cent 
market share of Plymouth CityBus and First Group.   
 
First Devon & Cornwall commenced new services on routes historically 
operated by Plymouth CityBus on Sunday 11th October.  Plymouth CityBus 
started a new service to Plymstock and increased frequencies on their 
Ernesettle and Saltash services.  
 
First Devon and Cornwall (FDC) may be attempting to strengthen its market 
position before a new, potentially national operator enters the City. The move 
from First Devon and Cornwall confirmed many of the potential risks that led 
to the Council looking into a possible sale of shares. There are clearly 
examples in other parts of the country of large transport groups underwriting 
losses in a subsidiary until such time as a target company is forced to 
withdraw from the market.  
 
It is very important to note that there will continue to be competition in 
Plymouth if the Council decides to sell Plymouth CityBus to the preferred 
bidder. 

Page 19



 
9 Current Trading Position and Fleet Investment 
 
Drop in revenue - Due to the high fixed cost base of running the company, 
profitability and cash are highly sensitive to turnover growth rates. There has 
been a drop in turnover of approximately 5 per cent in the six months to 
September 2009. This drop in turnover has been offset by lower than 
expected insurance, fuel and coach operation costs. It must be stressed 
however, that these reductions in operating costs should be considered “one 
off” savings and must not be expected in future years. The position going 
forward is very difficult to predict and involves a lot of risk for the Council as 
owner. It is very important that members are aware of this.  

Threat to investment - As set out in the report of 2nd June, in order to comply 
with future legislative standards Plymouth CityBus has identified that it will 
need to replace 51 buses of differing types and 12 coaches and refurbish 38 
low floor vehicles. So as to protect its business base and encourage future 
use, the company intends to invest £6.8m in 50 vehicles over the next four 
years. 

This long term investment must be generated either from either external 
borrowing e.g. leased vehicles or profits generated by the company. The drop 
in turnover has increased the risk that the investment required cannot be met 
from the company’s profits and will have to be externally funded. It should be 
noted that if this were to arise the management of the company would re-
profile the timing and funding of the investment requirements. The investment 
would therefore be delayed.  

Additional Competition Risk - The projected downturn in revenue identified 
above does not reflect the impact of any increased competition due to the 
recent registrations by First Devon & Cornwall. This competition and the 
company’s response may have a significant impact on the company’s profits. 
It should be noted that it was competition from another bus company that 
drove the disposal of Preston, Chester and Eastbourne Bus companies for 
relatively modest values. As identified above, the risk of significant competition 
was always a risk for the bus company.  

Pensions Liability -  Additionally the Council has now identified a further 
significant liability in the Company’s pension scheme. This deficit is not due to 
any failure by the company management but rather the turbulent performance 
of the stock market together with the age profile of the funds members. It is 
estimated that the company will have to pay an additional £550,000 per 
annum into the scheme for the next 10 years to make up the deficit. Such a 
payment would probably reduce future dividends to the Council, making the 
required investment in vehicles very difficult to achieve (see section 8 below). 
   
10 Recent disposals of Bus Companies   
 
Since deregulation of the Bus industry in 1986 there has been a gradual 
reduction in municipally owned Bus companies. In 1986 there were 45 Council 
owned bus companies plus seven large businesses owned by the 
metropolitan authorities (PTEs), which were themselves amalgamations of a 

Page 20



large number of municipal companies. Currently there are thirteen left with a 
probability that two of those will be sold shortly to a major bus company.  
 
Over the last five years, five municipally owned bus companies have been 
sold to private companies and there have been consistent rumors around 
several others. The significant disposals were in Blackburn, Bournemouth, 
Chester Eastbourne and Preston (an employee owned company). There is 
further detail on these disposals in Appendix 4 to the report.  
 
Many Councils were forced to sell due to the mounting losses being incurred 
by their bus companies or significant competition. Chester Council delayed its 
sale process to litigate against Arriva who had entered into competition. The 
delays contributed to Chester making a net loss of £700,000 (reported receipt 
c£2m) on the sale process. Blackburn, Eastbourne and Preston all sold under 
competitive pressure from other bus companies. This competitive pressure 
resulted in relatively low receipts for Preston (c£6.4m) and Eastbourne 
(c£3.7m).  Bournemouth however sold their Yellow Bus brand for £c13.8m.   
 
11 Valuation of Plymouth CityBus 
 
In March 2008 the Council obtained an estimate of the value of its 100% 
shareholding in Plymouth CityBus of £15m to £17.5m. The valuation was on 
an enterprise and  debt and cash free basis.  

 

12 Dividend Comparison 

The report to Cabinet on 2nd June 2009 looked at three different dividend 
scenarios and the extrapolated value of them over a 20 year period adjusted 
to present value. However it was using limited base data (the average of 4 
years of dividends), and it is now considered more appropriate to look at a 
longer period (25 years) and use actual dividends received. 
 
For this purpose officers have used the historic dividends received over the 
life of the company (23 years) and 2 years (as of April 2009) forecast 
dividends. The dividends have been adjusted to give their present value which 
is £9.3m over 25 years. 
 

This comparison presumes that the dividend income will continue for the next 
25 years as it has done for the last 25 years. In the light of the pension liability 
position of the company it is unlikely that the dividend income will match that 
achieved for the last 25 years. However the use of the model demonstrates 
that the Council has exceeded the 25 years dividends by £10.9m.  

Page 21



 

13 PCB Staff 
 

Plymouth CityBus employs 485 staff of whom approximately 320 are drivers.  
Currently c.70% of employees participate in the Company’s pension schemes.  
There are two pension schemes: a defined benefits pension scheme with 
circa 40 members and a defined contribution scheme.  

 

The 40 staff referred to above are in the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS). The preferred bidder intends to retain LGPS membership for these 
staff; this is an important benefit for those staff affected by this transfer.  All 
other staff will continue to enjoy the same rights under the defined contribution 
scheme. 

 

It is expected that on the 20th November a paper will be considered by the 
Investment Committee of the LGPS pension scheme requesting continued 
membership of the scheme. 

  

The preferred bidder has undertaken that there will be no compulsory 
redundancies of local (i.e. those operating commercial services) bus drivers 
for 12 months for reasons within the Company’s control. They have stated that 
they wish to continue coach and engineering operations subject to them 
demonstrating on-going profitability.  

 

There is an employee share ownership scheme in operation in the Go-Ahead 
group and Go-Ahead have indicated that Plymouth CityBus employees will be 
able to join that scheme. Additionally they will continue to operate the 
engineering apprenticeship scheme.  

 

14 Pension Liability 

Plymouth CityBus currently pays an employer’s contribution rate of 9.2% and 
as of 31st March 2009 had a deficit of £2.2m. The Plymouth CityBus scheme 
operates on a closed basis and does not allow new members. Currently there 
are 40 active members in the scheme. These members have an average of 8 
years until they become 65. The preferred bidder intends to retain LGPS 
membership for these staff.  
 
The Devon Pension Scheme actuaries were asked to undertake a review that 
would assess the rates that a new employer would pay upon admittance to 
the fund. Additionally they have been asked to assess the deficit attributable 
to the fund at 31st December 2009.   
 

Page 22



The deficit has increased substantially since the March 2009 valuation. The 
deficit would not be recognised in Plymouth CityBus accounts until their next 
pension valuation in 2010.  
 
Based on the information available, regardless of the Council decision to sell 
shares or not, the Bus Company will probably have a contribution rate of 
20.8% for staff (an increase of £70,000 per annum) and a deficit of £4.9m with 
minimum deficit payments of £620,000 for 10 years.  
 
This results in the company having to find an additional £620,000 to pay into 
the pension scheme every year. 
 
Based on the information now available, regardless of whether a sale of 
shares is taking place or not, the Company’s costs will probably rise by circa 
£0.62m per annum for pensions. 

 
The Council has a choice of retaining the historical deficit of £4.9m on the 
Council’s account or insisting that the preferred bidder accepts the liability. 
Should the bidder accept the liability then the deficit is netted off the 
consideration received. There are a number of advantages in the Council 
retaining the deficit on its own accounts as follows: 

• The Council can manage the deficit flexibly over a period of time and/ 
or make lump sum payments. 

• There is no impact on the capital receipt for the Council from the 
disposal of the shares. 

It is recommended that the Council retains the deficit for the reasons stated. 

 

The Council currently guarantees any liability that the Company cannot meet 
in relation to its LGPS liabilities.  This position will change if the shares in the 
company are sold. The negation of this on-going long term liability generates 
an estimated one-off pension adjustment of £0.7m for the Council. 

 
If the Council decides to proceed with the sale of its shares in the Company 
then it will be liable for the pension deficit and any transfer costs at the point of 
transfer which it is estimated together total £5.6m. This would be a revenue 
payment which would be considered as part of the Council’s overall review of 
its pension position (next review March 2010) and is estimated to increase the 
employers annual contribution rate by 0.2% equivalent to £0.225m (this would 
be reflected in revised contribution rates from April 2011 onwards).   
 
15 Depot  
 
The company is based in Milehouse on a 10 ¾ acre site consisting of a 
mixture of modern and old buildings. The Council could choose to leave the 
land in the ownership of the company or seek to extract the land prior to sale 
and rent it back to the company at a market or peppercorn rate.  

Page 23



Throughout the bid process the bidders have been asked for their opinion on 
the future of the site. All have been quite clear that they wish to retain it as a 
bus depot because of its excellent facilities, location in the centre of town and 
on a major arterial route. 

A planning appraisal has been carried out that indicates it is unlikely that the 
site would receive planning approval for retail development, which would be 
the most financially beneficial. Under current guidance and policy it is unlikely 
there would be approval for any development apart from residential with some 
limited retail usage. 
 
It is estimated (April 2007) that a seven acre replacement site with hard 
standing and similar depot facilities would cost in the region of £8.2m prior to 
the purchase of any land.   
 
In September 2007 a valuation estimated the Milehouse site to be worth 
£5.4m as a residential mixed use site. The valuation presumes that the site is 
free of significant contamination and stressed that should contamination be 
identified that it could have a significant impact upon the site value because 
significant remediation costs that would be incurred to prepare the land for 
residential development.  
 
The depot at Milehouse is owned by Plymouth CityBus.  There is no economic 
reason why the Council should have the land transferred across to it from 
Plymouth Citybus.  Any rental income stream would reduce the price for the 
shares.  
 
 
A further valuation of the Milehouse site was undertaken in November 2009 
which valued the land at £3.0m. The valuation states that “at the present time 
we consider that the value of the site in its existing use is in excess of that as 
a redevelopment opportunity”.  
 
In the bidding process bidders’ agreement was sought to a sharing of any 
future receipt if the land were sold. The preferred bidder offered an 
arrangement where, should there be a sale of the current depot in the next 30 
years then any uplift in value between the current market price and the future 
sale price is shared between the Council and the preferred bidder, with the 
proportion due to  the Council declining over 30 years.   
 
The Milehouse site has a long history of being used as a transport depot. The 
site is currently well managed, with pollutants being managed in accordance 
with legislative standards. The preferred bidder will not accept any liability for 
any historical pollution on site; this is a rational and commercially sound 
position. It is prudent to insure against any such risk retained by the Council. 
Officers are currently considering the cost and benefits of insurance cover for 
this risk which is estimated to be approximately £50,000 for five years cover; 
although cover may be required for a shorter period. 
 
The proposal from the preferred bidder in relation to the property is specifically 
recommended to members as part of the overall transaction.  

Page 24



 

16  Sale and Purchase Agreement and Legal Documents  
 

There are a number of legal documents which are needed to effect a sale of 
shares in a transaction of this nature. Appendix 6 sets out a brief summary of 
the main documents and their provisions.  
 
17 Concessionary Fares 

The concessionary bus fares scheme is a nationwide system of ensuring free 
bus travel for people aged 60 and over and people of any age who qualify 
under the categories listed in the Transport Act 2000. 

Those eligible get free travel on local buses from 9.30am until 11pm on 
weekdays, and all day weekends and bank holidays, across England. They 
may also receive any other further concessions which their local authority 
might choose to offer on top of that. 

Plymouth CityBus successfully appealed to the Secretary of State for 
Transport in relation to the rate of reimbursement from the Council. This led to 
the Council amending its scheme so that all operators are reimbursed in line 
with the Department of Transport’s preferred methodology for reimbursement. 
Apart from the annual adjustment to reimbursement rates contained within this 
mechanism the scheme for operators is not set to change prior to 2011. The 
DfT is expected to  consult on changes to reimbursement rates, with any 
changes taking effect in operator reimbursement rates from April 2011.  
 
Based on a continuation of the current concessionary fares scheme it is 
predicted that the value of concessionary travel to Plymouth Citybus in the 
period 2009/10 is £3.4m and in 2010/11 will be circa £3.6m.. Plymouth 
CityBus have been increasing the claim for concessionary fares annually. It is 
not expected that the change in ownership will impact on the reimbursements 
already made by the Council.  
 

18 Budget  
 
On the 2nd June 2009 Cabinet approved a budget of £946,000 split into the 
three stages. It is expected that the project costs will be within this budget at 
completion. 

19 Conclusion 
 

The report to Cabinet on 2nd June examined the impact that a sale of all or 
part of the shareholding in Plymouth CityBus could have on the following four 
areas: 

• The future of Plymouth CityBus 
• Plymouth CityBus staff 

Page 25



• Generation of income 
• The reduction of risk to the Council. 

 

19.1 The Cabinet report identified that Plymouth CityBus holds risks in terms 
of increasing competition and the risk of sufficient capital investment.  
 
The concerns expressed in that report were that Plymouth CityBus was 
coming under pressure from other operators who were beginning to compete 
with Plymouth CityBus in its traditional marketplace. Since that report First 
Devon and Cornwall have registered a number of services on core routes 
operated by the Company.  

 
The report noted that the capital investment requirements of £6.8m would 
need to be funded from profits. The Part 1 report identifies that the Company’s 
turnover prior to any impact from First Devon & Cornwall has reduced by 
approximately 5%. While this has been offset by reductions in costs those 
cannot be relied upon in the long term, therefore the self-funded capital is 
unlikely to be available. In contrast the preferred bidder has committed to 
invest in a new fleet to deliver the 100% low floor access and an average fleet 
age of eight years by March 2011.   
 
19.2 Plymouth CityBus staff have generally been opposed to the sale of the 
Council’s shareholding. However they would no doubt acknowledge that the 
future of the Company and their employment is dependent on the Company’s 
financial performance. The commitment in relation to future employment for 
local bus drivers is more then they benefit from now under Council ownership. 
Additionally it is anticipated that Go-Ahead’s approach in relation to pensions 
will be welcomed. 

 

The preferred bidder has stated that they want to review the operation of the 
coach business and the engineering services operated by the company, and if 
that,  those are demonstrated to be profitable, they foresee no reason to 
change the company’s commitment to these services. 

 

19.3 As noted above in Paragraph 5  the receipt from the sale of the shares in 
Plymouth City Bus is greater then that estimated in March 2008 of £15-
£17.5m. The sale of shares generates a significant receipt. Based on the 
historical dividends received by the Council it would take over 50 years to 
achieve the price being offered to the Council for the shares.   

 

19.4 The Cabinet report on the 2nd June identified possible risk to the Council 
as being reductions in the level of dividend income in the future, the potential 
need for a capital injections into the Company from the Council, and the risk 
of reductions in value of the Council’s shares in the Company.  Should the 
Council decide to sell its shares in the Company these risks would be 
removed. 

Page 26



 

Plymouth CityBus operates an efficient interconnected bus service. It does so 
in the interests of the Company and the Council does not direct it to do so.  

Because of Plymouth CityBus’s efficient interconnected services it is expected 
that a sale of shares would result in no decrease in the level of service 
received by its customers; indeed Go-Ahead has given a commitment in 
relation to retention of the current network for a period of six months.  

 

The preferred bidder has a history of expanding networks and encouraging 
utilisation in partnership with local authorities. In fact with increased 
investment it may be able to expand Plymouth CityBus network coverage and 
develop new routes.  

 
  
20 Corporate Plan 2009-2012:  
The Council has identified ‘improving access across the city’ and ‘providing 
better value for money’ as two of its fourteen corporate improvement priorities 
within the corporate plan. This paper impacts on those and it is considered 
that the achievement of these two corporate improvement priorities would be 
supported by any decision to sell the Council’s shares in Plymouth CityBus. 

   

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Res ource Implications:     
Including Finance, Human, IT, Legal and  Land 
 
Finance Implications 
 
The adjustments for net agreed debt (£1.245m) and loan repayments, 
dividends and reimbursements due to the Council (0.825m) will result in the 
Council receiving £19.6m the majority of which will be a treated as a capital 
receipt.. The funds would be paid on completion of the sale, which it is 
expected would be in the week commencing 30th November 2009. 
 
If the Council decide to proceed with the sale of its shares in the Company 
then it will be liable for the pension deficit and any transfer costs at the point of 
transfer which are estimated at a total of £5.6m. This would be a revenue 
payment which would be considered as part of the Council’s overall review of 
its pension position (next review March 2010) and is estimated to increase the 
employers annual contribution rate by 0.2% equivalent to £0.225m (this would 
be reflected in revised contribution rates from April 2011 onwards).   
 
HR Implications 
 
Aspects relating to Plymouth CityBus staff are covered in Paragraphs 7 and 8 
above. There are none for the Council. 

Page 27



 
IT Implications 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications 
 
The Council owns shares in Plymouth CityBus under the provisions of part IV 
of the Transport Act 1985 (as amended).  
 
Section 75 (2) of the Act states that any authority owning shares in a public 
transport company has the power to dispose of shares “in such manner as 
they think fit”. 
 
Section 80 of the Act requires an authority when disposing of any shares 
under Section 75 (2) not to do anything which would inhibit competition in the 
provision of bus services. 
 
The proposed terms of the sale of the Council’s shares to the preferred bidder 
comply with the council’s obligations under the Transport Act. 
 
It should be noted that the Council continues to have responsibilities as 
Transport Authority under this and other transport legislation and these 
statutory obligations would continue unaffected by the proposed sale of the 
council’s shares in Plymouth CityBus. 
 
In considering the recommendations in this report and in the open report, 
members must also be aware of their ongoing fiduciary duty to the rate payer 
of the City given the significant financial implications of the decision.  
 
Land Implications 
 
Covered in Paragraph4 of this report 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safet y, Health and 
Safety, Risk Management, Equalities Impact Assessme nt, etc. 
 
Community Safety has been considered and this project has no impact. An 
Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out and the conclusion is that 
the there should be positive implications from the enhanced nature of the fleet  

Page 28



 

21 Recommendations  
 
 

(1) The Cabinet notes the content of this Report and the Update Report  

(2) The Cabinet having considered the contents of this report and the 
update report recommends the following to Council 

The Council 
 

1. Approves the sale of 100% of the shares in Plymouth CityBus 
Limited held by Plymouth City Council and Barry Keel on Trust 
for the Council to Go-Ahead Holding Ltd on the terms set out in 
the Conditional Sale and Purchase Agreement (“the SPA”) 
entered into between (1) the Council and (2) the Preferred 
Bidder (“the recommended terms of sale”) subject to the 
satisfaction of the condition in the SPA 

Reason: The sale of the council's shares in Plymouth CityBus on the 
terms proposed secures value for the taxpayer.   

2. Authorises the Director for Corporate Support or any other 
officer authorised by him) to make any drafting or other 
amendments required to the recommended terms of sale to 
address any issues arising prior to completion, provided that 
such amendments do not affect the core terms of the sale and 
provided that such amendments are made following consultation 
with the Project Board. 

Reason: This allows for any unforeseen issues to be addressed prior to 
the finalisation of the legal documents provided this does not affect the 
core terms of the proposed sale 

3. Authorises the Director for Corporate Support (or any other 
officer authorised by him) to take all necessary steps for and on 
behalf of the Council that may be required in the SPA or in any 
of the documents referred to in the SPA or relate to the wider 
transaction contemplated by the SPA which shall include the 
documents listed in the Annex to this Part1 and Part 2 Report 
("Transaction Documents"). 

Reason: This enables officers to implement the decision to sell the 
shares 

Page 29



4. Authorises the Head of Legal Services (or any other officer 
authorised by him) to agree and execute all documents required 
to effect the sale.  

Reason: This authorises officers to finalise all legal documents needed 
to complete the sale 

 

5. Authorises the Director for Corporate Support (or any other 
officer authorised by him) to act as Authorised Officer for the 
purposes of Article 7 of the Articles of Association of Plymouth 
CityBus Limited.  

  

Reason This enables the Council's powers and responsibilities as 
shareholder of Plymouth CityBus (until the sale of the shares takes 
effect) to be exercised if this is needed to effect the sale 

6. Instructs all Council-nominated Non Executive Directors of 
Plymouth CityBus Limited to resign at the next meeting of the 
Board of Plymouth CityBus Limited or at such other time as 
required by the Director for Corporate Support and instructs 
Barry Keel to transfer the share held by him in Trust for the 
Council as directed by the Director of Corporate Support    

Reason This will ensure that the resignation of the Council Non 
Executive Directors is timed correctly to tie in with the sale of shares 
and change of control of Plymouth CityBus and that all shares are 
transferred. 

 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for reco mmended action: 
 
The alternative options are: 
 
1 To retain the current shareholding in Plymouth Ci tyBus. 
 
This would result in the Council retaining the risks of: 
- reductions in the level of dividend income in the future particularly given 
the additional costs that will have to be incurred by the Company in relation to 
pension liabilities;  
- the potential need for a capital injections into the company from the 
Council; and 
 the risk of reductions in value of the Council’s shares in the company,   
Additionally the Council would forgo a significant receipt during the current 
financial year. 

Page 30



 
2 To sell only part of the Council’s shareholding.   
 
Of the five bids received no bidder offered the option of purchasing a minority 
shareholding.    
 
 
Background Papers 
 

Minutes & Reports to: 
 

1. Cabinet  - Monday 2nd June 2009 
2. Resources & Performance Scrutiny – Wednesday 10 June 2009  
3. Overview and Scrutiny Commission - Thursday 11 June 2009  
4. Overview and Scrutiny Commission - Wednesday 24 June 2009  
5. Overview & Scrutiny Management Board – Wednesday 2 

September 2009 
6. Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel - Thursday 

1 October 2009  
7. Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel - Thursday 

29 October 2009 
 
Sign off:   
 
Head 
of Fin 

CDR/ 
CAPF 
91000
06a/1
91109 

He
ad 
of 
Le
g 

DVS Hea
d of 
HR 

X Head 
of AM 

X Head 
of IT 

X Head of 
Strat 
Proc 

X 

Originating SMT Member John Cremins, Head of Strategic Procurement 

Page 31



Appendix 1 
 
Process to Date 
 
2.1 Cabinet approval 
 
On the 2nd June 2009 Cabinet decided to  
 
1 Seek, and negotiate proposed terms with, potential purchasers of shares in 
Plymouth CityBus subject to the  full Council approving of any final 
recommendation for sale. 
 
2 Delegate to the Director for Corporate Support approval for the use of up 
to £946,000 for the project from the TCP Budget.  
 
3 Authorise the project manager (John Cremins or any successor) and his 
project team to discuss any potential transfer of Plymouth CityBus assets as 
part of the dialogue with any parties interested in acquiring all or part of the 
shareholding. 
 
4 Establish a Project Board to oversee the delivery of this project, comprised 
of: 

• Leader 
• Deputy Leader 
• Cabinet Member for Finance, Property, People and Governance1 
• Director for Corporate Support (Project Sponsor) 
• Assistant Director Transport & Highways 
• Project Manager 

 
 
5 Delegate to the Director for Corporate Support, in consultation with the 
Project Board members, authority for the following matters through the bid 
stages of the project: 

• Agreeing the basis for the short-listing of bidders interested in 
purchasing shares 

• Short-listing bidders 
• Approving the issuing of bid documents 
• Making recommendations for any transfer of Plymouth CityBus assets 

as part of the sale process 
• Conducting negotiations with bidders 
• Taking any other action necessary in connection with the project to 

enable the Council to be in a position to make an informed decision in 
due course on in relation to the disposal or otherwise of Plymouth 
Citybus shares 

• Making a recommendation to Cabinet in due course as to what 
recommendation Cabinet should make to Council on the disposal of 

                                                 
1 The portfolio holder stepped down after declaring an interest in July 2009 prior to the first project 
board. 

Page 32



any or all of the Council's shareholding in Plymouth CityBus, and on 
the terms of any such disposal. 
(Noting the review requirements in section 6) 

 
 

6 Request that the Director for Corporate Support undertakes reviews, in 
consultation with the Project Board, as to whether he considered that the 
project should be continued or not - at each of the following points in the 
project: 

 
• End of Stage 1 (‘Advertise for interest in acquiring shares and invite 

bids’); and 
• End of Stage 2 (‘Assess bids., negotiate and invite final bids’); and 
• Reports to Cabinet in the event that, having undertaken either review, 

he considers that the project should not be continued. 
 
 
2.2 Expressions of Interest 
 
On the 2nd and 3rd July 2009 advertisements were placed in 2 trade presses 
(Route 1 and Local Transport Today) and The Evening Herald stating that 
“Plymouth City Council is considering disposing of part or all of the equity 
shareholding of Plymouth Citybus Limited” and that “Expressions of interest in 
acquiring part or all of the equity shareholding are therefore sought from 
principals who, on an individual basis or in consortium, can demonstrate that 
they have the skills and resources to commit to the future growth of bus 
transport in the area.” 
 
The deadline for submitting expressions of interest was the 22nd July 2009. 
 
2.3 Pre Qualification 
 
The advertisement inviting expressions of interest in acquiring all or part of the 
equity shareholding was published in the local and trade press on 2nd and 3rd 
July. 11 expressions of interest were received and all subsequently sent a Pre 
Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) to determine their suitability to enter into 
the bidding process. Of the 11 companies that registered an expression of 
interest 10 submitted the PQQ and supporting documentation by the deadline.   
 
2.4 First stage bids 
 
As part of the pre-qualification process all bidders signed confidentiality 
agreements in respect of the information they were to receive. The PQQs 
were subsequently assessed by the Project Manager with support from the 
Project team and the Project Board approved the issue of the bid documents 
to ten companies.  
 
 
A commercially confidential bid document known as an “Information 
Memorandum” was issued to the shortlisted bidders, on 10th August. This 

Page 33



provided information on business operations, the Plymouth market, 
opportunities for growth, company assets, suppliers, customers and financial 
information. On the 19th August First Group plc wrote to the Council stating 
that they were not going to submit a bid.  
 
Bids were due by the 11th September 2009. In total five companies submitted 
offers, some of the bids had alternative offers included and all of them were 
for 100% shareholding in Plymouth CityBus. A variety of reasons were given 
for the withdrawal of bidders (including that they could not bid in the time 
given; Plymouth was too remote from their other operations).  However not all 
those who did not bid provided reasons.  
 
The Project team reviewed the bids and recommended that three companies 
were invited to submit second stage bids. The Project Sponsor (Director for 
Corporate Support) undertook a review, in consultation with the Project Board, 
as to whether he considered that the project should be continued or not. The 
outcome of that review was that the project should continue. 
 
 
2.5 Second stage bids 
 
Second stage bidders were provided with access to a data room and two 
vendor due diligence reports, prepared by independent legal and financial 
advisers. The bidders had previously signed agreements that ensure that the 
information provided remains confidential. The financial due diligence report 
gave a business and market overview with detailed information on assets, 
cash flows, projections, taxation and pensions.  The legal due diligence 
reports provided information on the contracts entered into together with the 
assets and liabilities of the company. Together these reports were 
comprehensive. A data room provided further information such as copies of 
monthly accounts etc. about the company. 
 
During this stage a number of meetings were arranged between the bidding 
companies and the management team of Plymouth CityBus. Additionally 
bidding companies had the opportunity to visit the main Milehouse site and 
had discussions with the project team.  
 
The deadline for the return of second stage bids was to be the 21st October 
2009, but at the bidders’ request this was extended to the 22nd October.  
 
The Project Manager with assistance from the Project Team reviewed the bids 
and made recommendation to the Project Board to appoint as preferred 
bidder Go-Ahead Holding Ltd. Further details on the offer received from the 
preferred bidder are contained in the Part 2 report.  
 
The Project Sponsor (Director for Corporate Support) undertook a review, in 
consultation with the Project Board, as to whether he considered that the 
project should be continued or not. The outcome of that review was that the 
project should continue. 
 

Page 34



2.6 Current Stage  
 
On the 27th October the Project Board approved the recommendations from 
the Project Manager and the process entered Stage 3 (Negotiation and 
closing) as set out in the report to Cabinet on 2nd June 2009. The purpose of 
this current stage is to negotiate the best terms with the bidder, prepare 
contracts setting out the full commercial terms of the transaction that can be 
submitted to full Council for approval.  
 
On the 2nd November Heads of Terms were agreed with the preferred bidder 
and signed on the authority of the Director for Corporate Support.  
 
At the time of writing this paper (11th November 2009) negotiations are on-
going and it is therefore not possible to release commercially sensitive 
information as a final position has not yet been agreed. The Part 2 paper will 
set out the proposed commercial terms. 
 

Page 35



 
 
Appendix 2  
 
Democratic Oversight & Scrutiny  
 

Following the request by Cabinet on the 2nd June 2009 to scrutinise the 
process, it was placed on the Resources & Performance Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel for the 10th June. This scrutinised the allocation of funds from 
the TCP Reserve to the project.   

Overview and Scrutiny Commission considered the item on the 11th June and 
recommended that “the progress of the project be monitored by the Growth 
and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel who could consider inviting the 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel”  
   
The project was then called-in under our procedures and was considered at 
the Overview & Scrutiny Commission on the 24th June 2009. The following 
reasons were given for the call in: 
 

• The process by which the decision was made was deficient. 
• The decision-maker failed to consider alternative courses of action. 
• The decision-taker failed to take account of relevant factors. 

 
After debating the above issues the matter then moved to a vote on whether 
to refer for further consideration; the commission voted against referring for 
further consideration and the project continued as agreed at Cabinet on the 
2nd June 2009.  
 
A petition with 20,328 signatories was received by the Council in August 2009. 
The petition reads “We the undersigned, wish to demonstrate our objection to, 
and oppose any move to sell Plymouth CityBus Ltd by Plymouth City Council. 
The leader of the Council accepted the petition on the 3rd August 2009 prior to 
full Council.  
 
On 2nd September 2009 the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 
approved the PID regarding monitoring of ‘Plymouth CityBus Limited 
Shareholding project’ a copy of which is attached to this report.  The Aim was 
to ensure that the process set out in the original decision is adhered to (2nd 
June Cabinet Report).  

 
The Joint Growth & Prosperity and Support Services Task & Finish Group 
(JGPSSTF) met on the 1st October 2009 to consider the process to the end of 
Stage 1 which had been completed on the 11th September 2009. At that 
meeting it was confirmed that the Council had received a number of bids well 
in excess of £10.0m.  
 

Page 36



The Joint Growth & Prosperity and Support Services Task & Finish Group 
(JGPSSTF) subsequently met on the 29th October 2009 to consider the 
process to the end of Stage 2 which had been completed on the 27th October 
2009. At that meeting it was confirmed that the Council had appointed a 
preferred bidder and entered into stage 3 of the project. 
 
The subject was also debated at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the 
Council on the 26th October 2009.   
 

Page 37



 
Terms of Reference for Scrutiny Task & Finish Group  

 
1 Title of Work 

Programme Item 
 

Plymouth City Bus Shareholding 
 

2 Responsible 
Director  
 

Adam Broome Director for Corporate Support 
 

3 Responsible 
Officer 
 
 

John Cremins, Project Manager 
 
 

4 Aim To ensure that the process set out in the 
original decision is adhered to (2/6/09 Cabinet 
Report). 
 

5 Objectives 
 

To ensure adequate monitoring of the project. 
 

 Benefits Demonstrable oversight of the process. 
 

 Beneficiaries The Scrutiny Panels with oversight 
responsibility. 
 

6 Criteria for 
Choosing Topics 
 

Key decision for the Council. 

7 Scope Process as set out in report of 2/6/09. 
 

 Exclusions Commercially confidential information re lating 
to prospective bidders or the operations of 
Plymouth CityBus. 
 

8 Programme Dates Phase 1 – Meeting date 1 st October  
Phase 2 – Meeting date 2 nd November  
 

 Timescales and 
Interdependences  

Milestones Target Date 
for 
Achievement 

Responsible 
Officer 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Receipt of 
bids for 
shareholding  
 
Phase 1 
Meeting 
 
Phase 2 
Meeting 
proposed 

11th 
September 
 
 
1st October  
 
2 November 

John Cremins  
 
 
John Cremins  
 
John Cremins  
 

Page 38



9 Links to other 
projects or 
initiatives / plans 

Corporate Improvement Priorities 11 
(Improving access to the city) and 14 
(providing better value for money) 
 
 

10 Relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 
Growth & Prosperity/Support Services 

11 Lead Officer for 
Panel 
 

 
Gill Peele/Simon Arthurs 
 

12 Reporting 
arrangements 
 

 
7 October/4 November Management Board. 
 

13 Resources 
 

Project Manager and staff support for Task 
and Finish Group. 
 

14 Budget 
implications 
 
 

Contained within current budgets. 
 

15 Risk analysis 
 

To demonstrate due process. 
 

16  Project Plan / 
Actions 
 

As Above 
 

 
 

Page 39



Appendix 3  
 
Office of Fair Trading (OFT) and Competition Commis sion 
(CC) 
 
In August 2009 the Office of Fair Trading published a national investigation 
into the local bus services market. They have identified that: 
 

• Across the country there is often monopoly or near-monopoly at the 
route, local and regional level.  

• There are barriers to new operators offering services, including 
aggressive response to competition that is intended to damage the 
incoming rival.   

• There are higher fares in those areas where operators are not 
challenged by a large well resourced rival. 

• That the concessionary fares regime (which is paid for by the tax 
payer) may be distorting the market.  The OFT have concerns that bus 
operators have been able to manipulate the regime to increase the 
amount they are paid for providing concessionary services.  

• That in some areas supported services receive low numbers of bids in 
response to tenders.  

The Office of Fair Trading is referring the operation of the national bus market 
(excluding London and Northern Ireland) to the Competition Commission 
which will then conduct a detailed public investigation and reach its own 
conclusions about the market. The Competition Commission has the power to 
impose remedies. At the current time there is no timetable for the conclusion 
of the competition enquiry; however the enquiry is not expected to commence 
before December 2009.  The investigation by the Competition Commission is 
not specific to any particular company or transaction. It is expected that the 
enquiry will take 18 months to conclude i.e. summer 2011.  

The Office of Fair Trading paper says that where there is no competition 
between national companies fares are 9% higher.  The OFT found no 
evidence that smaller bus operators impacted on the prices charged by 
national operators.  
 
The bus industry has experienced a number of situations over recent years in 
which a concerted effort by one operator has had a seriously detrimental 
effect on another operator. The Competition Commission has investigated 
some of the recent acquisitions and disposals of small bus companies that 
arose as a result of this type of action in both Preston and Eastbourne.  
 
The Competition Commission released its preliminary findings in August 2009 
stating that the two acquisitions reduced competition significantly, however on 
the 22nd October 2009 after further evidence was put forward and more 
analysis undertaken they changed their decision with regards to Eastbourne 
and concluded that they do not consider that the merger of Eastbourne Buses 
and Cavendish Buses has substantially lessened competition 

Page 40



 
So far the Competition Commission has not ruled on Preston and if the 
acquisition is found to be anti-competitive a number of remedies could be 
considered including a requirement for Stagecoach to sell parts of the 
acquired businesses, measures to encourage new entry of other operators, as 
well as controls on fares and requirements to maintain service levels.  
 
It is unlikely that there would be any significant referral to the Office of Fair 
Trading should the shares be sold to the preferred bidder as their nearest 
operational base is in Swanage, Dorset. If there was a referral this is at the 
risk of the preferred bidder not the Council. 

Page 41



 
Appendix  4  
 
Recent Disposals of Bus Companies 
 
Since deregulation of the Bus industry in 1986 there has been a gradual 
reduction in municipally owned Bus companies. In 1986 there were 45 Council 
owned bus companies plus seven large businesses owned by the 
metropolitan authorities (PTEs), which were themselves amalgamations of a 
large number of municipal companies. Currently there are thirteen left with a 
probability that two of those will be sold shortly to a major bus company.  
 
Over the last five years, five municipally owned bus companies have been 
sold to private companies and there have been consistent rumors around 
several others. Below is a short explanation of the sale processes of 
municipally owned Bus Companies over the last five years. 
 
Bournemouth 
 
Bournemouth Yellow Bus (100% owned by the local council) was sold to 
Transdev in late October 2005. Since the sale, a significant investment has 
been made in developing the routes, services and marketing, including a new 
£8.9 million depot. Patronage has been increasing an estimated 20 per cent 
year on year.  

There was a perceived need to modernise the fleet and a realisation that full 
privatisation would better equip the operator to overcome the increasing 
competition it was facing from Wilts & Dorset, the council offered the company 
for sale. 
 
The sale has been reported as having generated approximately £13.8m for 
the Council. 
 
Blackburn 
 
Blackburn Transport, which was wholly owned by Blackburn with Darwen 
Council, was sold to Transdev in 2006, with the deal being finalised on 22 
January 2007.  The proceeds have not been disclosed. 
 
The Blackburn business had been struggling for some time, with an elderly 
fleet, and intense competition from a number of small operators over several 
of its core routes. 
 
Transdev amalgamated the Blackburn business with its Lancashire United 
operations that had previously been acquired from Blazefield Holdings, and 
which had originated with Stagecoach.  Transdev has extensively modernised 
the fleet, as in Bournemouth, and has re-launched the network under the 
“Spot On” brand. 
 
 

Page 42



Chester 
 
In August 2006 Chester City Council announced that 12 companies had 
registered interest in purchasing ChesterBus. In September 2006, Arriva  
registered a network of services due to commence in January 2007, which 
duplicated the majority of ChesterBus's routes.  
 
On 11 October 2006, ChesterBus and Chester City Council commenced an 
action in the High Court against Arriva, claiming that the registrations were 
anti-competitive under the Competition Act 1998, and asking for an injunction 
requiring Arriva to de-register them. 
 
In November, most of the registrations were cancelled, though revised 
registrations for the 1/1A and 15A were made (considered the best of 
ChesterBus’s routes), these were held until after the judgment by the High 
Court.  
 
The claim had centred on the allegation that Arriva were abusing a dominant 
position, but in a judgment dated 15 June 2007, it was held that Arriva had not 
been demonstrated to hold a dominant position, and the claim was therefore 
dismissed. 
 
The agreement of the sale to First was announced on 21 June 2007. The sale 
created a net loss for the Council (estimated at around £700,000) after 
realising the Net debt of ChesterBus and the court costs which exceeded 
£2m. 
 
Preston  
 
During the privatisation process that followed deregulation in 1993 the 
company was bought from the local authority by its employees, and became a 
limited company. In 2006, Preston Bus was subject to some high profile 
competition from national operator Stagecoach Group through their 
Stagecoach North West subsidiary. Competition escalated into a bus war with 
Stagecoach offering lower fares on the busiest routes.  
 
On 10 June 2008, both companies agreed to a code of practice imposed by 
the traffic commissioner. The competition continued, with Stagecoach 
operating routes within Preston and Preston Bus operating a route between 
Preston and Penwortham. 
 
On 30 December 2008 it was reported that Preston Bus had agreed in 
principle to an acquisition by its rival operator, Stagecoach North West. On 23 
January 2009, Preston Bus was sold to Stagecoach in an estimated £6.4 m 
deal.   
 
In November the Competition Commission decided that the merger reduced 
competition and potentially harmed the interests of passengers. Stagecoach 
have been told to sell Preston Bus Limited to a competing company, The sale 
will include a bus depot, other assets and a network of routes, including 

Page 43



services formerly run by Preston Bus but since transferred to Stagecoach 
following the acquisition.  
 
Eastbourne   
 
In November 2008, local press reports had indicated that the company was to 
be sold by the end of the year to either the Go-Ahead Group or Stagecoach 
Group.  This relatively small business was subject to intense competition over 
much of its network from a private operator, Cavendish Motor Services, and 
had been losing money since 2004.  It was also the case that the French 
transport group Keolis, which had earlier purchased a minority stake in 
Eastbourne Buses from the Council, wanted to exit.  
 
The employees' trade union, Unite, wrote to Eastbourne Borough Council to 
ask the Council to sell to the Go-Ahead Group, because of work conditions 
and a superior fleet. 
 
On 25 November 2008, it was announced that Stagecoach was the preferred 
bidder. The sale was concluded in December 2008.  
 
Stagecoach made a simultaneous purchase of the Cavendish business; the 
Competition Commission examined the mergers in 2009 and initially 
concluded that they substantially lessened competition, but later reversed its 
decision. 
 
There has also been criticism of the low sale price for the company - revealed 
at £3.7 million. It has been reported that the proceeds were utilised to clear 
the historical pension deficit of the company. 
 
Rossendale  
 
Rossendale entered into a similar process to that of Plymouth City Council 
earlier this year. After receiving first stage bids for the company the decision 
was taken not to progress further into the process as the offers received were 
not of a sufficient value to represent Value for Money  
 
Islwyn Borough Transport 
 
The sale of Caerphilly Council owned Islwyn Borough Transport to 
Stagecoach has been agreed this month. The sale is subject to Office of Fair 
Trading clearance and no price has been disclosed.  Islwyn is comfortably the 
smallest of the remaining municipally owned businesses. 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
Appendix 5 
 
Information on Go-Ahead 
 
Go-Ahead is one of the UK's largest providers of passenger transport services 
operating in the bus, rail and aviation services sectors. It employs around 
27,000 people across the country, with almost 1 billion passenger journeys on 
bus and rail services each year. It operates in three main sectors of rail; buses 
and aviation services.  
 
The company was initially formed as the Gateshead-based Go-Ahead 
Northern when the management team acquired The Northern General 
Transport Company during the privatisation of the National Bus Company in 
1987. 
 
Early expansion saw the acquisition of a number of smaller competing bus 
operators in the North East, with their first major acquisition in the bus industry 
being the acquisition of Brighton & Hove in November 1993. This was quickly 
followed by the acquisition of Oxford Bus Company in March 1994. The bus 
division turnover was £585m for the year to June 09 and the operating profits 
were £66.6m.  They carried 600m passengers and had a fleet of 3,519 
vehicles. The average age of the fleet is 6.4 years. 
 
Today its bus division is split into 6 operating companies: 

• Go-Ahead London 
• Go North East 
• Go South Coast 
• MetroBus 
• Brighton & Hove Bus and Coach Company 
• Oxford Bus Company 

 
Go-Ahead have stated that they intend that Plymouth City Bus will remain as 
a separate operating company and continue to use the name. 
 
The rail division is 65% owned with the other 35% owned by Keolis. It 
generates annual revenues of £1552m (operating profit £61.5m). The main 
rail companies are:  

• Southern 
• South Eastern 
• London Midland 

 
Go-Ahead have invested heavily in new buses and technology to reduce 
emissions, they were the first UK operator to introduce buses powered by 
Euro IV and Euro V engines. 
 

Page 45



Go-Ahead have also invested in ‘black box’ engine monitoring technology and 
driver training schemes, which it hopes will increase fuel efficiency by around 
5%.  
 
An emissions report by the TAS Partnership, a leading independent public 
transport consultancy, confirmed that Go-Ahead has the youngest and 
greenest bus fleet of the major UK operators.  The study, which examined 118 
bus fleets, took into account the minimising of carbon monoxide, hydrocarbon 
and nitrogen oxide in vehicles, Go-Ahead’s Oxford bus came out on top in the 
report with another Go-Ahead company Brighton & Hove placed second in the 
report.  
 
That report also highlighted that Go-Ahead had the youngest average age of 
any of the major operators at just 6.4 years old compared to an average of 8.1 
 
This continued commitment to high standards of corporate responsibility has 
been recognised externally. In 2008 they became the first and only UK public 
transport company to be officially certified with the Carbon Trust Standard 
after taking action on climate change.   
 
 
On 12th November the Go-Ahead subsidiary Brighton & Hove Bus and Coach 
Company won the national premier award of UK Bus Operator of the Year 
2009.  Amongst bus operators in the UK, the UK Bus Operator of the Year is 
the major national award.  
 
The award citation was as follows:  

“The company has an enviable reputation in the local community it serves. It 
is perhaps the best example today of how partnership with local authorities 
and other stakeholders can grow patronage and encourage modal shift 
consistently over many years.  

With their partners, Brighton & Hove were at the forefront of industry 
developments (e.g. real time information, and catering for people with 
disabilities) which are now commonplace, but they have not rested on their 
reputation and have continued to move forward with innovative marketing, 
clever ticketing, and a passion for excellent customer service to support their 
network of high frequency services provided by a very modern fleet. 

Our mystery traveller found Brighton & Hove’s reputation for excellence fully 
justified: "The real-time information is one of the best in the country, with 
clear, well-maintained displays that actually work.”. The company’s ambitious 
flat fare system (with helpful short-hop fares available, too) makes for 
simplicity and speeds up boarding. Feedback from customers is not only 
acted on and taken seriously (often at managing director level), it is actively 
encouraged. Driver skill is good, too, both in terms of customer care and 
smooth driving.  

"Fleet presentation is excellent, with buses looking smart and clean, and self-
promotion of the company’s products - indeed of the whole idea of bus travel 

Page 46



being a good thing for the city - on the outside of the fleet is done with wit, 
style and pzazz." 

Page 47



Appendix 6  
 
Sale and Purchase Agreement and Legal Documents 
 
There are a number of legal documents which are needed to effect a sale of 
shares in a transaction of this nature. This section sets out a brief summary of 
the main documents and their provisions.  
 
The Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA)  is the principal document 
governing the sale and purchase of the shares in Plymouth Citybus Limited. It 
sets out the full terms of the sale, including:  

 
• the price to be paid for the shares;  
• the conditions of the sale;   
• the mechanics of the sale, including the operation of the Company 

during the period between the date the SPA is signed and completion 
of the transaction, the resignation of directors, the repayment of 
Company loans, and the pre-sale dividend; 

• the contractual protections for Go-Ahead and the Council, and the 
limitations of liability; and 

• the undertakings given by Go-Ahead in relation to the operation of the 
Company post-completion. 

 
The disclosure letter  is a letter from the Council to Go-Ahead setting out 
information in relation to the Company.  It is read in conjunction with the 
various warranties in the SPA which provide assurances to Go-Ahead in 
relation to the Company’s business, assets and operations.  Its effect is to 
limit the Council’s liability under the warranties. 
 
The SPA contains a number of statements (known as warranties)  which are 
given by the Council to Go Ahead.  These warranties are designed to give 
assurances to Go Ahead in relation to the Company’s business, assets and 
operations.   

 
In summary, the warranties cover the following matters:  

 
• the Council’s legal capacity to enter into the contemplated 

transaction; 
• the shares in the Company which are proposed to be sold 
• the Company’s accounts and changes to the Company’s 

finances since the last filed accounts;  
• the Company’s material assets,  
• the material contracts of the Company and the effect of the 

proposed sale on these contracts;  
• the intellectual property and information technology owned or 

used by the Company;  
• the Company’s insurance and health & safety policies and 

procedures; 

Page 48



• the liabilities of the Company or of others in relation to the 
Company and any litigation the Company is or has been 
involved in;  

• the Company’s directors, officers and employees; 
• the Company's pension schemes;   
• the properties used by the Company;  
• the pension schemes operated by the Company;  
• environmental matters; and  
• tax. 

 
If a warranty given by the Council proves to be untrue, Go Ahead may be 
entitled to make a claim for damages against the Council for breach of 
warranty.  Any such claim will be subject to the limitations of liability set out in 
the SPA.  

 
The tax deed is an agreement between the Council and Go-Ahead which 
allocates tax liability arising in the Company.  Tax liabilities arising on all 
activities in the period of the Council’s ownership are payable by the Council 
and the Council indemnifies Go-Ahead accordingly.  Any tax liability arising 
during the period of Go-Ahead’s ownership will be payable by Go-Ahead with 
a reciprocal indemnity to the Council. 
 
Following the sale of the shares held by the Council the Company will cease 
to be a "deemed scheduled body" for the purposes of Local Government 
Pension Scheme ("LGPS") and, in particular, the Devon County Council 
Pension Scheme within the LGPS.  The pension deed  sets out the 
obligations on the Go-Ahead to seek admitted body status for the Company 
once it is owned by Go-Ahead or to provide applicable employees with a 
broadly comparable pension scheme if such status is not granted.  The 
pension deed also allocates the pension liabilities and other pension costs 
arising in connection with the transaction.  
 
The overage deed  is entered into by the Council and the Company in order to 
ensure the Council benefits from any future disposal or development of the 
Milehouse Depot.  If, within 30 years of completion, the Milehouse Depot is 
either sold by the Company, or a long lease over the site is granted by the 
Company, or there is a change in use (with the relevant planning permission 
being obtained), the Council is entitled to receive a specified percentage of 
any profit or financial benefit made or received by the Company. 

 
Ancillary documents  which are also needed include stock transfer forms, 
directors resignation letters, extracts from Council minutes for the meeting 
approving the transaction, discharges of various debentures granted by the 
Company to the Council and changes to the Company bank mandates. 
 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
30 NOVEMBER 2009 

 
 
 
Cabinet Minute 85  
of the meeting held on 10 
November 2009 
(and minute 93 of the 
meeting held on 20 
November 2009) 

PLYMOUTH’S CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE’S PLAN 2008 - 2011 (REFRESH 
2009) 

 
 
  
The report of the Director for Services for Children and Young People was 
submitted. 
 
 
Resolved that it be recommended to the City Council that the 2009 refresh of 
the Children and Young People’s Plan be endorsed 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Note: 
 

The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867 

Agenda Item 8Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 

30 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Cabinet Minute 87 
of the meeting held on 10 
November 2009 

GAMBLING ACT 2005 - 3 YEAR REVIEW 
OF THE STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES  

 
 
 
 
The report of the Director for Community Services was submitted. 
 
Resolved that it be recommended to the City Council that the Gambling Act 
Statement of Licensing Policy contained in Appendix B (of the report) be 
adopted and that the Officers be authorised to take the necessary steps to 
publish the new Policy, to be implemented on 31 January 2010. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Note: 
 

The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867 

Agenda Item 9Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 

30 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board  
Minute 46 (3) 
of the meeting held on 4 
November 2009 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PANELS  
(BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
VETO) 

 

 

Resolved that with regard to Growth & Prosperity OSP minute 25, ‘Business 
Improvement District (BID) Veto’, the resolution be agreed, to be amended as 
follows – 
 
“In view of the excellent results achieved by the BID to date, the City Council 
be recommended not to exercise the power of veto with regard to the 
renewed BID” 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Note: 
 

The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website 

Agenda Item 10Page 55



www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867 

Page 56



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
 

30 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

 
 
Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Board Minute 
46 (4) of the meeting held 
on 4 November 2009 

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PANELS 
(AMENDMENT TO SCRUTINY PANELS’ 
TERMS OF REFERENCE)  

 
 
  

Resolved that with regard to Safer & Stronger OSP minute 5, ‘terms of 
reference’, resolution (2), City Council be recommended to agree resolution 
(2) which required that the Overview and Scrutiny Panels’ terms of reference 
be amended to read: 
 

• ‘To monitor the budget and performance of the Cabinet Members, 
Department(s) and partners to oversee delivery of the priorities of the 
area and with regard to better value for money’. 

  
 
 
 
 
(The Panels’ current terms of reference in relation to budget and performance 
monitoring are as follows: 
 

• To monitor the budget and performance of the Cabinet Member, 
Department and partners to ensure that the priorities for the area are 
being delivered upon) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

Note: 
 

The full report in connection with this minute is available on the website 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

or by contacting Democratic Support on 01752 304867 

Agenda Item 11Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 

THE FOUR MONTH FORWARD PLAN 
 
 
 

 
 
 

1 November 2009 to 28 February 2010 
 
 

Date of Publication: 
 

 15 October 2009 

 
Contact Officer: 
 

Judith Shore 
Democratic Support Team Leader 

Email: judith.shore@plymouth.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01752 307990 
Fax No: 01752 307990 

 
 

The Forward Plan is published monthly 

Agenda Item 15Page 59



2 

 
PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
What is the Forward Plan? 

Section 14 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules requires the Cabinet to 
prepare a Forward Plan to cover a period of four months. The Forward Plan 
should contain key decisions that the Cabinet believe are to be taken within this 
period. It describes who is the decision maker, the period in which the decision 
will be taken, those whom the decision taker proposes to consult, the steps any 
individual may take who wishes to make representations to the decision maker 
and a list of background papers considered by the decision taker in respect of the 
key decision. 

What is a Key Decision? 

A key decision is – 
 

(a) Any decision in relation to an Executive function which results in the 
Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which 
are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for the 
service or function to which the decision relates; 

or 
 

(b) Any decision that is likely to have a significant impact on two or more 
wards within the Council. 

 
The threshold for significant expenditure / savings is £2 million for the 
award of contracts and £500,000 for all other matters.    

 
The Cabinet cannot consider key decisions if they have not been included 
within the Forward Plan unless they fall within the two exceptions set out at 
paragraph 15 & 16 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules, namely: 
 
PARAGRAPH 15. GENERAL EXCEPTION 

If a matter which is likely to be a key decision has not been included in the 
forward plan, then subject to Rule 16 (special urgency), the decision may still 
be taken if: 
(a) the decision must be taken by such a date that it is impracticable to defer 

the decision until it has been included in the next forward plan and until 
the start of the first month to which the next forward plan relates; 

(b) the monitoring officer has informed the Chair of a relevant Scrutiny 
Panel, or if there is no such person, each member of that panel in 
writing, by notice, of the matter to which the decision is to be made; 

(c) the Monitoring Officer has made copies of that notice available to the 
public at the offices of the Council; and 

(d) at least 5 working days have elapsed since the Monitoring Officer 
complied with (a) and (b). 

Where such a decision is taken by a committee, it must be taken in public. 
 

Page 60



3 

 
PARAGRAPH 16. SPECIAL URGENCY 

If by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken Rule 15 (general 
exception) cannot be followed, then the decision can only be taken if the 
decision taker (if an individual) or the Chair of the body making the decision, 
obtains the agreement of the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Board that the taking of the decision cannot be reasonably deferred. If there is 
no Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, in his/her absence 
the Vice Chair will suffice, or in both their absences, any other Member of the 
Board. 
 
The Forward Plan does not need to refer to exempt information and 
confidential information cannot be included. 

What is the Budget and Policy Framework? 

This is a reference to the Council’s policy framework and is made up of a 
series of Statutory Plans and Strategies listed as below: 
 

Corporate Plan   All Our Futures 

Children and Young People’s Plan  Capital Strategy and Asset Management 
Plan  

Licensing Authority Policy Statement – 
Gambling Act 2005 

 Housing Strategy 

Local Development Framework 
(Documents) 

 Investment in Children (comprising 
Strategy for Change and Building 
Schools for the Future) 

Local Transport Plan  Plymouth Economic Strategy 

Sustainable Community Strategy  Waste Management Strategy 
Youth Justice Plan   

 
What does the Forward Plan tell me? 

The Plan gives information about: 

• what key decisions are coming forward in the next four months 

• when those key decisions are likely to be made 

• who will make those decisions 

• what consultation will be undertaken 

• who you can make representations to, and how 

• what documents can you ask for, and when 

• who you can contact for further information 

Page 61



4 

 

Who takes Key Decisions? 

Under the Council’s Constitution most key decisions are taken at public 
meetings of either the City Council or the Cabinet and these bodies are 
presently scheduled to meet on the following dates: 
 

 November December January February 

City Council 
Council House 
(2 pm) 

30 November - - 1 February  

Cabinet 
Council House 
(2.pm) 

10 November 15 December 19 January 9 February 

 
Who can I contact? 

Each entry in the Plan indicates the names of all the relevant people to 
contact about that particular item. In addition, the last page of the Forward 
Plan gives a complete list of all Members of the City Council, the 
Leader/Executive Members and the Chief Executive/ Executive Directors. 

How do I make contact? 

Wherever possible, full contact details are listed in the individual entries in the 
Forward Plan. If you are unsure how to make contact, please ring the City 
Council and staff will be able to assist you: Telephone 01752 668000 

How do I get copies of agenda papers? 

The agenda papers for City Council and Cabinet meetings are usually 
available five working days before the meeting and can be accessed on the 
Council’s website: www.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov. 
 
On occasions, the papers you request may contain exempt or confidential 
information. If this is the case, it will be explained why it will not be possible to 
make copies available. 

Page 62



5 

 

How can I get copies of the Plan? 

Copies of the Plan are available for inspection at reasonable hours, free of 
charge, at the Plymouth City Council offices.  The Plan is updated monthly on: 
 

2009 
12 November 
10 December 
2010 

14 January 
11 February 
11 March 
8 April 

 
Copies are also available on the City Council’s website: 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov. 
 
 
 
General 

If you have any questions or comments about the Plan, we would positively 
welcome them and would ask that you send them direct to the contact officer 
named at the start of the Plan. Please also let us know if you have any 
difficulty in accessing a copy of the Plan or any of the documents referred to 
therein. 

Ian Gallin 
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



6 

 

 
 
 

THE FOUR MONTH FORWARD PLAN 
 
 
 

1 November 2009 to 28 February 2010 
 
ITEM Page No 
  

PLYMOUTH CITYBUS SHAREHOLDING LIMITED (FP 27 09/10) 8 

GROWTH AGENDA: GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS (FP 24 
09/10) 

9 

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: SUBMISSION OF 
DERRIFORD AND SEATON AREA ACTION PLAN (FP 29 09/10) 

10 

*LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: ANNUAL REVIEW OF 
PLANNING OBLIGATIONS AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (FP 38 09/10) 

11 

AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE LIFE CENTRE 
PROJECT (FP 33 09/10) 

12 

*COUNCIL TAX BASE 2010/11 (FP 34 09/10) 13 

REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES FOR THE GAMBLING 
ACT 2005 (FP 25 09/10) 

14 

LOCALITY WORKING (FP 15 09/10) 16 

*CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY (FP 36 09/10) 17 

HOUSING STOCK TRANSFER (FP 57 07/08) 18 

PLYMOUTH SPORTS FACILITY STRATEGY (FP 64 08/09) 19 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL'S AQUATICS STRATEGY (FP 26 09/10) 20 

BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE GOVERNANCE (FP 31 
09/10) 

21 

PLYMOUTH CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST PLAN 2008 
- 2011; REFRESH 2009 (FP 30 09/10) 

22 

Page 64



7 

*RESIDENTIAL CARE: UPDATE ON MODERNISATION OF OLDER 
PEOPLE'S SERVICES (2005 - 2015) (FP 37 09/10) 

23 

TENDER OF THE COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICES 
CONTRACT (FP 32 09/10) 

24 

*CITY CENTRE BID (FP 35 09/10) 25 
 

Page 65



8 

 
PLYMOUTH CITYBUS SHAREHOLDING LIMITED (FP 27 09/10)  

 

Nature of the decision: 

Recommendation from Cabinet to full Council in relation to the sale of any or all of 
the Council’s shareholding in Plymouth CityBus Limited. 
 
(Note: this item is a voluntary addition to the Forward Plan.  The decision is not a 
Key Decision)   

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of the Director for 
Corporate Support, in consultation with the Project Board members) 

Timing of the decision?  10 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

The matter will be considered by the Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel. 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Report, including recommendation, from the Director for Corporate Support 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Report, including recommendation, from the Director for Corporate Support 

Representations: In writing by 20 October 2009 to - 
1. Director for Corporate Support; 
2. Councillor Mrs Pengelly (Leader) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  John Cremins, Project Manager 
E mail: john.cremins@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 305606 

Page 66



9 

 
GROWTH AGENDA: GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS (FP 24 09/10 ) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To seek approval for new governance arrangements to manage and progress the 
growth agenda. 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor Fry) 

Timing of the decision?  Between  20 October 2009 and 15 December 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Local Authorities in the Sub Region 
Government Office South West 
Home and Communities Agency 
Wealthy Theme Group 
Regional Development Agency 
City Development Company 

Process to be used: 

Direct discussions 
Meetings 
Presentations 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

List of current groups and meetings 
Sub National Review of Economic Development and Regeneration (CLG) 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

As above for decision makers 

Representations: In writing by 5 October 2009 to - 
1. Assistant Director of Development and Regeneration (Planning) 
2. Councillor Fry (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Paul Barnard, Assistant Director for Development 
(Planning) 
E mail: paul.barnard@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304860 

Page 67



10 

 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: SUBMISSION OF DERRIFOR D AND 
SEATON AREA ACTION PLAN (FP 29 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To seek approval for the submission of the Derriford and Seaton Area Action Plan to 
the Secretary of State, including publication of the pre-submission version of the 
Area Action Plan for the purposes of consultation 
 

Who will make the decision?  City Council (Cabinet Member: Councillor Fry) 

Timing of the decision?  Between  15 December 2009 and 26 April 2010  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Key stakeholders, local communities and members consulted as part of Issues & 
Preferred Options process, which was approved by the Cabinet on 20 January 2009. 

Process to be used: 

Issues and Preferred Options consultation process involved exhibitions, meetings, 
briefings, use of newsletter and other publicity material. 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

1. Local Development Scheme 
2. Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
3. Consultation responses on Area Action Plan Issues and Preferred Options report 
4. Local Development Framework evidence base reports 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

as above for decision makers 

Representations: In writing by 30 November 2009 to -  
1. Assistant Director of Development (Planning) 
2. Councillor Fry (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Jonathan Bell, Head of Development Planning 
E mail: jonathan.bell@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304353 

Page 68



11 

 
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK: ANNUAL REVIEW OF PLANN ING 
OBLIGATIONS AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING SUPPLEMENTARY PL ANNING 
DOCUMENT (FP 38 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To approve for consultation an Annual Review of the Planning Obligations and 
Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document, including updating the level 
of tariff in line with the latest information, updating the market recovery measures 
and improving the user - friendliness and clarity of the document  
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor Fry) 

Timing of the decision?  Between  15 December 2009 and 9 February 2010  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Plymouth Regeneration Forum and Local Agents Forum, Members of the Planning 
Committee, infrastructure providers and other users of the document 

Process to be used: 

Workshops, surveys and discussions 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

1. Local Development Scheme 
2. Local Development Framework Core Strategy 
3. Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document: 

adopted 2008 
4. Local Development Framework evidence base reports 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

as above for decision makers 

Representations: In writing by 30 November 2009 to - 
1. Assistant Director for Development (Planning) 
2. Councillor Fry (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Jonathan Bell, Head of Development Planning 
E mail: jonathan.bell@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304353 

Page 69



12 

 
AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE LIFE CENTRE PROJECT 
(FP 33 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

Approval of award of the construction contract for the Life Centre project.  The 
project is currently in the Council’s Capital Programme in the sum of £46.5m. 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor 
Bowyer) 

Timing of the decision?  10 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

The process for awarding the contract has been approved under the delegated 
authority of the previous Project Board. The new structure resulting in the formation 
of a Programme Board provided for the final approval of contract award to be given 
by Cabinet. 

Process to be used: 

A recommendation was made by the Project Team and this was referred to the 
Programme Board and, subsequently, the Executive Board for approval with the final 
approval remaining with Cabinet. 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

A tender evaluation report with supporting information 
Recommendation of the Life Centre Executive Programme Board 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

A written report and supporting documents 

Representations: In writing by 26 October 2009 to -  
1. Director for Community Services 
2. Councillor Bowyer (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Tony Hopwood, Major Projects and Capital 
Programme Director 
E mail: tony.hopwood@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 305428 

Page 70



13 

 
COUNCIL TAX BASE 2010/11 (FP 34 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To give approval to the Council Tax Base, which will be used as the basis for setting 
the Council Tax level for 2010/11. 
 

Who will make the decision?  City Council (Cabinet Member: Councillor Bowyer) 

Timing of the decision?  1 February 2010  

Who will be consulted and how? 

The Council Tax base is calculated as part of a statutory process, based on data 
relating to the council tax property base. Consultation is not applicable. 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

1. The regulations governing the calculation of the tax-base. (Local Authorities  
    (Calculation of Tax-Base) Regulations 1992. 
2. The tax-base report. 
3. The level of estimated collection rate and the option to vary the discounts given on 

2nd homes and empty properties. 
4. Recommendation of Cabinet on 15 December 2009 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

As above for information to be considered by decision makers. 

Representations: In writing by 30 November 2009 to - 
1. Assistant Director for Finance, Assets and Efficiencies 
2. Councillor Bowyer (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Gary Edwards, Accounts Processing Manager 
E mail: gary.edwards@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304404 

Page 71



14 

 
REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES FOR THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 (FP 
25 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

3 year review of the Statement of Principles for the Gambling Act 2005. 
 

Who will make the decision?  City Council (Cabinet Member: Councillor 
Brookshaw) 

Timing of the decision?  30 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

• Citizen’s Advice Bureau 
• Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
• Devon and Cornwall Constabulary 
• Plymouth City Council Social Services / Education Department 
• Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue Service 
• Environmental Health 
• Gamblers Anonymous 
• Gambling Commission 
• Gamcare 
• Local businesses and their representatives 
• Local faith groups 
• Local residents and their representatives 
• Mencap 
• NSPCC  
• Primary Care Trust 
• Representatives of existing licence-holders 
• Voluntary & Community organisations working with children & young people 
• Overview and Scrutiny Management Board / Customer and Communities 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
• Cabinet (15 September and 10 November 2009 to make recommendations) 

Process to be used: 

� Information on the changes provided in writing to the listed stakeholders 
� Press release 
� Web site 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Cabinet Report (10 November 2009) containing:  
Background to the legal framework 
The new Statement of Principles, which will identify the changes 
Summary of the consultation responses (Public and Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board) 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Written report and associated background documents. 

Page 72



15 

Representations: In writing by 26 October 2009 to - 
1. Director for Development and Regeneration 
2. Councillor Brookshaw (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Andy Netherton, Principal Environment Health 
Officer 
E mail: andy.netherton@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304742 

Page 73



16 

 
LOCALITY WORKING (FP 15 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To agree a model for service co-ordination within Plymouth’s six Localities, and 
associated community engagement arrangements 
 

Who will make the decision?  City Council (Cabinet Member: Councillor 
Brookshaw) 

Timing of the decision?  1 February 2010  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

1. Community groups 
2. Lead officers for service providers  
3. Members of the Council’s senior management team  
4. Overview and Scrutiny Management Board /Scrutiny Panel  
5. Cabinet  (10 November to make recommendations) 
6. Members 
7. Local Strategic Partnership 
8. Plymouth City Council’s Corporate Strategy Forum 

Process to be used: 

1.   Area Committees 
2.   Meetings / discussion       
3.   Written consultation process 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Results from consultation 
Local Strategic Partnership’s working group’s recommendations on Localities 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Written report and results from consultation 

Representations: In writing by 16 October 2009 to - 
1. Assistant Director for Safer Communities 
2. Councillor Brookshaw (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Peter Aley, Assistant Director for Safer Communities 
E mail: peter.aley@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304321 

Page 74



17 

 
CUMULATIVE IMPACT POLICY (FP 36 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To consider reports from the Public Protection Service and Customers and 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel on the 12 month review into the 
operation of the Cumulative Impact Policy and make recommendations to Council as 
appropriate 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor 
Brookshaw) 

Timing of the decision?  10 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Customers and Community Scrutiny Panel 
Public Consultation via the Public Protection Service 

Process to be used: 

Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel meeting on the 28 
September 2009 
Public consultation via direct mailing, press release and web site 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Recommendations from Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Results of the public consultation undertaken by the Public Protection Service 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Report from the Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Report from the Public Protection Service 

Representations: In writing by 26 October 2009 to - 
1. Assistant Director for Environmental Services 
2. Councillor Brookshaw (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Andy Netherton, Principal Environment Health 
Officer 
E mail: andy.netherton@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304742 

Page 75



18 

 
HOUSING STOCK TRANSFER (FP 57 07/08) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

Housing Stock Transfer proposal 
 
Please note that due to the fast moving and not always predictable nature of 
the project, this item is included in the Forward Plan in the event of 
unforeseen decisions being required by Cabinet at the earliest opportunity.  

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor 
Brookshaw) 

Timing of the decision?  Before 31 December 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Tenants and Leaseholders 
Staff 
Members 

Process to be used: 

Tenants and Leaseholders  – through established tenant and leaseholder 
involvement networks, including PETRA, the Interested Tenants Network and the 
Stock Transfer Advisory Group, and organised consultation events 
Staff  – through staff briefings, team meetings and other organised meetings. 
Discussion with Union representatives 
Members  – through briefings and requests for feedback, and through the Members 
Panel 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Background papers on key issues in the stock transfer proposal process 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Background papers 

Representations: In writing to – 
1. Director for Corporate Support 
2. Councillor Brookshaw (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Belinda Pascoe, Programme Manager 
E mail: belinda.pascoe@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 307119 

Page 76



19 

 
PLYMOUTH SPORTS FACILITY STRATEGY (FP 64 08/09) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To adopt the Facilities and Sports Strategy 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor 
Jordan) 

Timing of the decision?  16 March 2010  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Members of the public 
Facility operators 
Sports Forum 
Clubs 
Schools 
National Governing Bodies 
User Groups 
Customer and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Process to be used: 

Personal interviews 
Questionnaires 
Research 
Meetings 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Draft Facilities and Sports Strategy 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Draft Facilities and Sports Strategy 

Representations: In writing by 1 March 2010 to - 
1. James Coulton, Assistant Director for Leisure, Culture and Sport 
2. Councillor Jordan (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Kevin Thomas, Sport and Leisure Manager 
E mail: kevin.thomas@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 307511 

Page 77



20 

 
PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL'S AQUATICS STRATEGY (FP 26 09 /10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To adopt the Aquatics Strategy. 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor 
Jordan) 

Timing of the decision?  16 March 2010  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Facility Operators 
Sports Forum 
Clubs 
Schools 
Coaches 
User groups 
Governing bodies 

Process to be used: 

Personal interviews 
Desk top study/research 
Questionnaires 
Meetings 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Draft Aquatics Strategy 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Draft Aquatics Strategy 

Representations: In writing by 1 March 2010 to - 
1. James Coulton, Assistant Director for Culture, Leisure and Sport  
2. Councillor Jordan (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Liz Slater, Leisure Projects Officer  
E mail: liz.slater@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 307129 

Page 78



21 

 
BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE GOVERNANCE (FP 31 0 9/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

Building Schools for the Future Governance. 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor 
Monahan) 

Timing of the decision?  10 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

� Senior officers of the Council  
� BSF interim Board 
� Strategic Partners advisors such as Partnership for Schools,  PfS and 4Ps 
� Plymouth Secondary Heads Assn. PASH 
� Trade Unions 
� Governors 

Process to be used: 

Readiness to Deliver (RtD) and Project Initiation Document (PID) circulated and 
commented upon. 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

BFS Governance of paper. 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Councils Expression of Interest (EOI) and Readiness to Deliver (RtD) known as 
Right Time right Place. 
Councils School Organisation policy known as Investment for Children, adopted by 
Council 2nd December 2008 

Representations: In writing by 26 October 2009 to - 
1. Director of Services for Children and Young People 
2. Councillor Monahan (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Gareth Simmons, Project Director for Buildings and 
the Learning Environments 
E mail: gareth.simmons@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 307161 

Page 79



22 

 
PLYMOUTH CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST PLAN 200 8 - 2011; 
REFRESH 2009 (FP 30 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To approve the refresh of the Children and Young People’s Plan 2008-2011. 
 

Who will make the decision?  City Council (Cabinet Member: Councillor Monahan) 

Timing of the decision?  30 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Views of young people, families and other stakeholders 
Children and Young People’s Trust Board and Executive Group 
Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Process to be used: 

Series of Stakeholder visioning events   
Children and Young People’s Trust Board and Executive Group meetings  
Briefings  
Reports 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Recommendation of Cabinet    
The plan was approved by the Children and Young People’s Trust Board on 18 
September 2009.  

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Report to Cabinet of 10 November 2009 
Children and Young People’s Trust Plan 

Representations: In writing by 26 October 2009 to -  
1. Director of Services for Children and Young People 
2. Councillor Monahan (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Richenda Broad, Head of Strategic Planning and 
Children's Trust Business 
E mail: richenda.broad@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 307341 

Page 80



23 

 
RESIDENTIAL CARE: UPDATE ON MODERNISATION OF OLDER PEOPLE'S 
SERVICES (2005 - 2015) (FP 37 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To agree the direction of travel in relation to the re-provision of short-term breaks / 
respite having regard to the outcome of the consultation exercise.  
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor Dr 
Salter) 

Timing of the decision?  10 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Consultation will have taken place with partner organisations, staff, residential and 
respite services, users/carers.   
 
A report will be provided to the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel meeting on 28 October 2009. 
 
Further discussions with staff, users/carers will take place following Cabinet on 10 
November 2009 to follow up any decisions taken. 

Process to be used: 

A range of methods will be employed as appropriate i.e. meetings 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Written report 
consultation responses 
recommendations of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

written report 

Representations: In writing by 26 October 2009 to -  
1. Director for Community Services 
2. Councillor Dr Salter (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Julia Penfound, Head of Modernisation Adult Social 
Care 
E mail: julia.penfound@plymouth.gov.uk    Tel: (01752) 307344 

Page 81



24 

 
TENDER OF THE COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICES CONTRACT (FP 32 
09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To approve the contract award for the provision of the Community Equipment 
Service (CES) for Plymouth City Council for a period of 3 years from 1 April 2010 
(with an option to extend for 2 further years) 
 

Who will make the decision?  Cabinet (on the recommendation of Councillor Dr 
Salter) 

Timing of the decision?  15 December 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

Persons to be consulted with: 

Corporate Support Department including Strategic Procurement, Legal Services and 
Finance 

Process to be used: 

Meetings and written report 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

• CES Contract Specification 
• Contract Award Report 
• Existing CES contract due to expire on 31st March 2009. 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

Contract Award  Report 

Representations: In writing by 30 November 2009 to –  
1. Director for Community Services 
2. Councillor Dr Salter (Cabinet Member) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Craig McArdle, Supporting People Manager 
E mail: craig.mcardle@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 307540 

Page 82



25 

 
CITY CENTRE BID (FP 35 09/10) 

 

Nature of the decision: 

To consider the recommendation from the Growth and Prosperity Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel on whether the Council wishes to exercise its veto after the City 
Centre BID ballot has taken place 
 

Who will make the decision?  City Council 

Timing of the decision?  30 November 2009  

Who will be consulted and how? 

The Cabinet has considered the Bid proposal and a ballot has been undertaken. 

Information to be considered by the decision makers : 

Report to Cabinet dated 14 July 2009. 
Written report to the Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Is this a part of the Budget and Policy Framework?  Yes 

Documents to be considered when the decision is tak en 

as above for decision makers 

Representations: In writing by 13 November 2009 to - 
1.  Assistant Director for Development (Planning) 
2. Councillor Viney (Chair of the Growth and Prosperity Overview and Scrutiny     

Panel) 
 

Contact details available from Plymouth City Council Tel: 01752 668000 
 
Further information – Availability of Documents:  
For further information contact:  Paul Barnard, Assistant Director for Development 
(Planning) 
E mail: paul.barnard@plymouth.gov.uk  Tel: (01752) 304860 

Page 83



26 

Municipal Year 2009/10 
Cabinet / Cabinet Members: 

 
Councillor Mrs Vivien Pengelly, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Ted Fry, Deputy Leader and Planning, Strategic Housing and 
Economic Growth 
Councillor Ian Bowyer, Finance, Property, People and Governance 
Councillor Peter Brookshaw, Safer and Stronger Communities 
Councillor Glenn Jordan, Leisure, Culture and Sport 
Councillor Michael Leaves, Street Scene, Waste and Sustainability 
Councillor Grant Monahan, Children and Young People 
Councillor Steven Ricketts, Customer Services, Performance and 
Partnerships 
Councillor Dr David Salter, Adult Health and Social Care 
Councillor Kevin Wigens, Transport 
 
 

Chief Executive and Executive Directors 
 

Barry Keel, Chief Executive 
Adam Broome, Director for Corporate Support 
Carole Burgoyne, Director for Community Services 
Bronwen Lacey, Director of Services for Children and Young People 
Anthony Payne, Director for Development and Regeneration 
Deb Lapthorne, Director for Public Health 

 
 
Other Members of the City Council 
 

The Lord Mayor (Councillor Ken Foster) 
The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Jonathan Drean) and 
Councillors Mrs Aspinall; Ball; Mrs Beer; Berrow; Bowie; Mrs Bowyer; Mrs 
Bragg; Browne; Coker; Dann; Delbridge; Mrs Dolan; Evans; M Foster; Mrs 
W Foster; Fox; Gordon; James; Kerswell; King; Lowry; Martin Leaves, 
Samantha Leaves; Lock; Dr Mahony; McDonald; Miller; Mrs Nelder; P J 
Nicholson; Mrs P D Nicholson; Purnell; Rennie; Reynolds; Roberts; Smith; 
Sally Stephens; Stevens; Stark; Thompson; Tuohy; Vincent; Viney; Mrs 
Watkins; Wheeler and Wildy  

Page 84


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes Public Pack, 26/10/2009 City Council

	7 PLYMOUTH CITYBUS LIMITED SHAREHOLDING
	Plymouth CityBus Ltd Shareholding report

	8 PLYMOUTH'S CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN 2008 - 2011 (REFRESH 2009)
	9 GAMBLING ACT 2005 - 3 YEAR REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES
	10 BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) VETO
	11 AMENDMENT TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANELS' TERMS OF REFERENCE
	15 Forward Plan

